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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any Statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

The mobile entertainment business is evolving at a tremendous pace and is likely continue to be challenging. New products
and services are being launched by competitors which intensify competition, but by capitalising our years of ample
experiences in the wireless music search services, we have demonstrated that we can succeed against this backdrop. We
have successfully launched a wireless music end user application for managing ringtones with China Mobile Limited (“China
Mobile”). Upon launching, this application recorded a robust growth in terms of user activity and payment rate, which are
much higher than the industry average. To further tap into the wireless entertainment area, we have newly developed
mobile social user applications and voice, music, photo-taking and GPS technology-related products.

Looking ahead, we are confident and optimistic about the Company’s prospects. Continuous investment in innovated
products and services has well positioned the Company to meet the challenges and capture the market opportunities. We
are committed to further enhance our close cooperation with China Mobile on supporting services for the content, product,
operation and channel. The Company also has strategies in place to accelerate and reinforce the cooperation with other
domestic and international telecommunication operators to explore new opportunities in other mobile entertainment
business.

Domestically, we will accelerate our cooperation with China Telecom Corporation Limited by diversifying the operational
supporting projects. Simultaneously, the Company is now at the advanced stage of negotiation with one of the largest
telecommunication operators in Malaysia to provide tailor made digital contents and innovative mobile solutions to its
subscribers, which is targeted to launch in the second quarter of the financial year ending 31 March 2014. Leveraging on
this cooperation, we will formulate strategies to roll out our music search and other mobile entertainment services to the
mobile users across South East Asia.

I ' would like to extend our sincere gratitude to all our shareholders including our customers and business partners, who
have reposed great trust in us and in our products. | also thank all our employees and dedicated management team for
their commitment and passion to the Company in helping us to lay strong foundations for capitalising on the opportunities
that the mobile world presents.

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEs Mo

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group's goal is to bring to market overall wireless digital
entertainment solutions. As the operational environments for
the Group’s traditional wireless music search services are going
through continuous radical changes, the Group not only need to
preserve its core business but must also proactively consider an
overarching strategy of diversification to meet the challenges.

During recent years, telecommunication operators in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") have undergone changes
in policies and thus the charging model of the Group’s mobile
music search services via network of China Mobile has been
changed. Currently, revenue is derived pursuant to the Group’s
operational support services agreements for which the Group
is charging China Mobile at a fixed technical supporting service
income. The revenue recorded therefrom is lower than the
revenue in the year ended 31 March 2012, which was derived
from a cooperation agreement with China Mobile. Please refer
to previous announcements and financial reports of the Group
for details of the cooperation agreement and technical support
services agreements with China Mobile and their financial
impacts.

In spite of high uncertainty in the business environment
in the PRC, after years of incubation, the Group has made
considerable progress on the deployment of new products. The
revenue from new products this year is encouraging and has
successfully smoothed out the downward trend brought along
by the impact from strict operating policies imposed by the PRC
telecommunication operators and changes in charging models. As
a result, the Group recorded revenue amounted to approximately
HK$57.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2013, representing
a decrease of approximately 15.0% compared with 2012 (2012:
HK$67.2 million).

Cost of Sales

As a result of decline in revenue, cost of sales of the Group
decreased from approximately HK$32.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2012 to approximately HK$29.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2013, with a year-to-year decrease of
approximately 6.8%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

Financial Review (continued)

Gross Profit

As a result of the drop of revenue, the Group'’s gross profit for the
year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$27.3
million, represented a drop of approximately 22.4% as compared
with that for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2012: HK$35.2
million).

Rigorous market competitions and introduction of new products
have trimmed the Group's gross profit from approximately 52.4%
for the year ended 31 March 2012 to approximately 47.8% for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

Other Income and Gains

During the year, other income and gains amounted to
approximately HK$2.3 million, which was increased by
approximately HK$1.0 million as compared with that of 2012
(2012: HK$1.3 million). The increase was due to increase in fair
value gain on an investment property.

Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2013, as a result of increasing
business development activities, the Group’s selling expenses
increased by approximately 20.7% to approximately HK$15.1
million (2012: HK$12.6 million).

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses experienced a decrease of
approximately 10.9% from approximately HK$42.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2012 to approximately HK$38.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2013 which was mainly due to more
cautious and tighter control on expenses.

Other Expenses

Other expenses represented expenses for research and
development and expenses of other non-operating activities.
Other expenses increased from approximately HK$4.6 million in
2012 to approximately HK$5.4 million in 2013 which was mainly
due to the increase in staff costs for products development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE AT

Financial Review (continued)

Financial Position

The Group has remained at a sound financial position. As at
31 March 2013, the total equity of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$49.5 million (2012: HK$77.8 million) and the
Group'’s net current assets amounted to approximately HK$39.4
million (2012: HK$67.9 million). The current ratio (current assets
to current liabilities) as at 31 March 2013 was approximately 2.1
(2012: 3.9).

The decrease in total equity, net current assets and current ratio
was mainly due to the loss incurred during the year ended 31
March 2013.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management
policy. In order to achieve better cost control and minimise the
costs of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised.
Cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated mostly
in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has financed
its operations by revenue generated from its operations and
a new bank loan. As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s cash and
bank balances (including pledged bank deposits) amounted
to approximately HK$51.8 million (2012: HK$67.4 million). The
decrease in cash and bank balances was mainly due to cash used
for financing the operations of the Group.

During the year, the Group borrowed a new bank loan of
approximately HK$11.4 million (2012: nil) for general working
capital purpose which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
repayable within one year. The bank loan is secured by a bank
deposit of approximately HK$12.5 million (2012: nil). As at 31
March 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group (total bank borrowings
over total equity) was about 23.0% (2012: nil). There was no
seasonality as to the Group’s borrowing requirements and no
other committed borrowing facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

Financial Review (continued)

Foreign Currency Exchange Exposure and Treasury
Policies

As most of the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets
and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, the impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group
was minimal and there was no significant adverse effect on
normal operations. As at 31 March 2013, no related hedges were
made by the Group (2012: nil).

Significant Investments, Acquisitions or Disposals
There were no significant investments or material acquisitions or
disposals by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2012: nil).

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March
2000. There was no change of the Company’s capital structure
during the year under review.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had a total of 112 employees
(2012: 113) and total staff costs for the year ended 31 March
2013 was approximately HK$28.1 million (2012: HK$30.7 million).
The Group's remuneration policy is basically determined by
the performance of individual employees and Directors and
the market condition. In addition to salaries and discretionary
bonuses, employee benefits included medical schemes, pension
contributions, share option schemes and staff training.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE AT

Business Review and Outlook

During the year under review, the Group achieved progress
in the provision of diversified mobile entertainment services.
For the wireless music search services, the expanded services
have been commercially scaled up, including the wireless music
user applications, personal entertainment information services,
individual social user applications and wireless reading services.

The Group continued the operational supporting project of wireless
music services with China Mobile, with a tighter collaboration
with China Mobile, so as to broaden the marketing channels of
respondents. Based on mobile end users development strategies
of the telecommunication operators, the Group has developed a
wireless music end user application for managing ringtones with
China Mobile. Upon launching this application into the market, it
recorded a robust growth in terms of user activity and payment
rate, which are much higher than the industry average. Moreover,
the Group has enhanced the innovation in the Group’s newly
developed mobile social user application and voice, music, photo-
taking and GPS technology-related products.

Looking ahead, in light of the promising prospect of digital music
industry in the PRC and the improved copyright protection, the
mobile internet user applications will develop at a rapid pace with
enormous growth opportunities.

In 2013, the Group will continue to strengthen its close
cooperation with China Mobile on supporting services in respect
of content, product, operation and marketing channel for a total
advancement of the Group’s wireless music search services and
music user application services. Based on the solid foundation
of the Group’s wireless music search services, the Group will
continue to provide more advanced search services and multi-
media services in order to improve the users’ loyalty and social
interactivity and maintain its leading position in the wireless
music search industry. Leveraging on its strengths in wireless
music over the years, and extend our cooperation to mobile
phone manufacturers and operators, the Group will rapidly
enhance the marketing and coverage of mobile users. The
Group will also accelerate to deepen its cooperation with China
Telecom Corporation Limited by diversifying the operational
supporting projects. It is expected that these services will bring
steady revenue to the Group.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

FHoERREE

CIRAFEAR » AEBEEZ TR B S IREEIR TS Bl
EERSER  EERFERRRGER L - BRIEMN
M IREHMEEARERBE(CRBERER - 25
BRESEMPHEMAREN  EARELERRS  EA
K3 P e AR A A M B AR BB AR A o

AEEREETEBHINRETAIF  AREBEH%
BETERSEERGIIFELEERE © JIEMNEE
TTIHNER - BEEMLEDCETHA P mBALNE
REEE - BPBEBHAERET —ARBEERER
SLAPHEMREN - EREAEARATSR &
HEMGRRAE - KEER - BRPERERNER
WEBBITEFGKE - Rl - AEBEFEOH K
FHREXAFPmERAREN - HET 5% 1% U
BTN EREIF MR N o

REARRK  PEBUTLITERRASIFZTLEE R
RBRR LT - BB EEAAPmEREAEELRE -
ﬁiﬁ??ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ©

—T=F > ARERRAT - Em - EZ - BETT
HETHENXERBEBENRETEBHINETS
tF NEERABKRELRRBBLILAF HER
R - AEBEEEGRELRSRBEET T HENE
B BREEINEZ SRR RRE A RS RERY
RIMEAERERERESN - BEBERSAEEESR
MELBRRITRNEENN - ~AEEREESFHEE
MELREEENEBER - WA R TR NE
ERNAE  RERTBHAPHROEEREE - K
SEGEMNEEPEEERNDERABRNRAEE -
EINEZXEAFRERE - RHELRBEERAE
BRI R e



Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE R AT

Business Review and Outlook (continued)

Simultaneously, the Group is now at the advanced stage
of negotiation with one of the largest telecommunication
operators in Malaysia to provide tailor made digital contents and
innovative mobile solutions to its subscribers, which is targeted
to launch in the second quarter of the financial year ending
31 March 2014. Leveraging on this cooperation, the Group will
formulate strategies to roll out its music search and other mobile
entertainment services to the mobile users across South East
Asia.

The Group will continue to implement the strategies of diversified
businesses, leverage on promising opportunities in the industry,
reinforce the cooperation with domestic and international
telecommunication operators and explore new opportunities
in other mobile internet services. The Group will continue
to develop under the leadership of management team with
excellent technical and research and development capabilities
and ample experience in the wireless search and mobile phone
user application areas.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENARNEEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 43, is the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, in charge of the overall corporate
strategies and business development of the Group. He is also
the Compliance Officer, an authorised representative, a member
of the remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and the Chairman of the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Yip is a graduate of Program
for Management Development from Harvard University and holds
a bachelor degree in electrical engineering from the University
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of America (“USA”). Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked in a software-consulting firm
as a consultant in the USA. He has been with the Group since
October 1996. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group's
former executive Director and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Ping,
an existing executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the former
Chairman of the Group.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director and an authorised representative of the Company in
August 2009. He is also a founder of the Group, an executive
Director from March 2000 to June 2007 and the general manager
of the Group from December 1992 to March 2000, in charge
of the Group’s overall management function. Mr. Yip holds a
bachelor’'s degree in electrical engineering from lowa State
University in the USA. Prior to joining the Group in 1992, Mr. Yip
worked for Hewlett Packard Asia Limited for 10 years. Mr. Yip is a
son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group’s former executive Director
and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Keung, the Group’s existing
Chairman and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the former Chairman of the
Group.

Ms. Li Luyi, aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director
in November 2010. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since February 2010 and responsible for overseeing
the daily operations of the Group. Ms. Li holds a bachelor’s
degree in Investment Economics from Shanghai Tongji University
in Shanghai. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li served as the
vice-president of Kongzhong Corporation, a company listed
on NASDAQ Global Select Market (NASDAQ: KONG) and the
vice general manager of the wireless industry department of
TOM Online Inc. Ms. Li has very extensive experience in the
marketing and business development of wireless value added
services especially in the music-related services, and also has
accumulated years of invaluable experience in the operation and
management of the telecommunications industry in the PRC.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaoxin, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in August 2010. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor degree in
operations research and industrial engineering from Cornell
University, New York, the USA and a master degree from
Stanford Graduate School of Business, California, the USA and
was a recipient of the 2000 Arjay Miller Scholar Award upon
graduation. Mr. Chen is currently a managing partner of Zeniphs
China Capital, a private equity fund (“Fund”) and has been an
independent director of KongzZhong Corporation, a company
listed on NASDAQ Global Select Market (NASDAQ: KONG) since
2008. Prior to joining the Fund in 2007, Mr. Chen was the chief
financial officer of Oak Pacific Interactive from 2003 to 2007, a
leading next generation internet platform provider that offers
web 2.0 communities, content creation and distribution, gaming
and integrated communication in China. Prior to that, Mr. Chen
was an investment banker at Citigroup Hong Kong. Mr. Chen has
very extensive experience in investment banking and corporate
management.

Mr. Mah Yong Sun, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in August 2010. Mr. Mah holds a bachelor degree of
science (engineering) in computer science from Imperial College
of Science & Technology in London, the United Kingdom and
is an associate of City and Guilds of London Institute in the
United Kingdom. Mr. Mah is an independent director of Celcom
Axiata Berhad and Catcha Media Berhad in Malaysia. He is
also a member of the Development Board of Imperial College
in London. Prior to that, Mr. Mah was a director of Accenture
Solutions Sdn Bhd, a private company, from 1997 to 2009 and
an executive partner thereof from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Mah was
also an executive partner of Accenture Pte Ltd. in Singapore
from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Mah has very extensive experience in the
operation and management of the telecommunications industry
in Asia.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Chun Wan, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in August 2010. He is also the Chairman
of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tam is a qualified accountant and
holds a diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Tam is currently a managing partner of a certified
public accountants firm in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom as well as a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tam has very extensive
experience in providing auditing, taxation and management
consultancy services.

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2005. She is also
a member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tse graduated from the Northern
lllinois University in the USA with a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Ms. Tse is currently employed in a leadership position
by a worldwide computer corporation in Hong Kong. Prior to
that, she has been in the information technology and software
industry for more than 17 years.

Ms. Lai May Lun, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in March 2006. She is also a member
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Ms. Lai graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in social science
and a master degree in business administration. Ms. Lai had
been the administration manager of a charitable foundation in
Hong Kong. Prior to that, she had worked for the Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited for more than 20 years and had
extensive experience in various areas of telecommunications.

Senior Management

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects
of the business and operation of the Group and are regarded as
the members of the senior management team of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Directors of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 132.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Summary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years.
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Results E
Year ended 31 March
BEE=A=1+—-HLHFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E=f Z2——F ZT—F ZT-FTF ZZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT FHT TFET BT
Revenue Wz 57,161 67,244 85,846 69,141 109,477
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBEAT(E18) = A (29,444) (23,849) 4,524 (3,035) 21,197
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisRiiEe,” () 67 (1,626) (3,229) (3,770) (5,561)
(Loss)/profit for the year PAYNEI Zre S DN Y]
attributable to equity holders FR(EER),HF
of the Company (29,377) (25,475) 1,295 (6,805) 15,636
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Summary Financial Information (continued) MBEEREE @)
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—EB—=F —T——-F ZFT—F ZFT-TF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FH&TT
Property, plant and equipment W - HE K& 3,907 4,043 4,527 4,778 4,900
Investment property WEWE 4,490 3,444 3,278 2,797 1,888
Deposits Hia — 717 826 — 1,253
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 831 826 809 796 796
Deferred tax assets FEFRTBE B 1,396 1,303 3,615 4,990 8,377
Current assets mENEE 76,742 91,705 111,123 96,912 108,018
Current liabilities mEAE (37,392) (23,780) (24,610) (17,085) (64,139)
Non-current liabilities JEmEAE (499) (493) (472) (52) (1,357)
Net assets BEFHE 49,475 77,765 99,096 93,136 59,736
Share capital &N 75,635 75,635 75,635 75,295 59,767
Reserves & (26,160) 2,130 23,461 17,841 (31
49,475 77,765 99,096 93,136 59,736

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and

the investment property of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements in share
options during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the
financial statements, respectively.

WX BMERRBURKRENHE

AEEME  BELREARBREDNERFRNZESD)
BN BIBN M MK 1314

IR K% B i

A AR R B PN A 2 BB EEIE 9 B E R B 75
RERM 26527 °



Report of the Directors
EEGWE

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association (the “Articles of Association”)
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 77% (2012: 86%) of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 36% (2012: 37%).
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Major Customers and Suppliers (continued)

In the year under review, supplies from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 43% of the Group's total
cost of sales for the year and supplies from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 12% of the Group'’s
cost of sales.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, supplies from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total
cost of sales for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 March, 2013,
Right Advance Management Limited (a substantial shareholder
of the Company) was interested in approximately 15.78% of
the issued share capital in the second largest customer of the
Group; and the ultimate beneficial shareholder of Right Advance
Management Limited (namely, Mr. Wang Leilei) together with
Right Advance Management Limited were, directly and indirectly,
interested in a total of approximately 22.74% of the issued share
capital in such customer. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping

Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin
Mr. Mah Yong Sun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Messrs. Tam Chun Wan, Chen Xiaoxin and Mah Yong Sun will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM").
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Independent Non-executive Directors’
Confirmations of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of its independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, an executive Director, entered into a
Director’s service contract with the Company for a term of one
year commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “2003 Service Contract”)
which was renewed automatically each year for successive
terms of one year each subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other
party. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into
between Mr. Yip Heon Keung and the Company on 1 April 2010,
the terms of the 2003 Service Contract was extended for a fixed
term of three years from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013 and was
renewed on 1 April 2013 for a fixed term of three years, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Save as amended by the supplemental
agreement, all other provisions of the 2003 Service Contract
remain in full force and effect.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an executive Director, entered into a
Director’s service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from 6 August 2009 and expiring on 5
August 2012 (the “2009 Service Contract”), subject to termination
by either party giving not less than three months' notice in writing
to the other party. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement
entered into between Mr. Yip Heon Ping and the Company on
6 August 2012, the terms of the 2009 Service Contract was
extended for a fixed term of three years from 6 August 2012 to
5 August 2015, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association. Save as amended
by the supplemental agreement, all other provisions of the 2009
Service Contract remain in full force and effect.
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Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Ms. Li Luyi, an executive Director, has entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for an initial term of one
year commencing from 10 November 2010 and expiring on
9 November 2011 (the “2010 Service Contract”), subject to
termination by either party giving not less than three months'
notice in writing to the other party. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreement entered into between Ms. Li Luyi and the Company
on 10 November 2012, the term of the 2010 Service Contract was
extended for a fixed term of one year from 10 November 2012
to 9 November 2013, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association. Save as
amended by the supplemental agreement, all other provisions of
the 2010 Service Contract remain in full force and effect.

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive Directors,
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin and Mr. Mah Yong Sun, under their respective
letter of appointment with the Company has been renewed for
a term of one year commencing from 20 August 2012 and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The term of appointment of each of the independent non-
executive Directors under their respective letter of appointment
made with the Company has been renewed for a term of one
year commencing from the date set out below and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association:

Commencement date of renewed term
20 August 2012

1 January 2013

1 March 2013

Name

Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine
Ms. Lai May Lun

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The Board are authorised by the Shareholders in general
meeting to fix the Directors’ remuneration. Other emoluments
are determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance, the results of the Group as well
as the prevailing market conditions.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out
in notes 8 and 30 to the financial statements.

The Directors confirmed that during the year under review, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopts and administers a share option scheme
which is currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The Company’s
original share option scheme was approved by the Shareholders
on 7 March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”), and was terminated
and replaced by a share option scheme approved by the
Shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The 2002
Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new share option
scheme approved by the Shareholders on 5 August 2011 (the
“New Scheme”). The options granted under the 2000 Scheme,
which were not exercised, terminated or expired previously,
became expired on 21 August 2011. Further details of the 2002
Scheme and the New Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s share

options outstanding during the year:

2002 Scheme

Name or category
of participant
28E
ABRER

Director
Bz

Ms. Li Luyi
FE—Xt

Other employees
of the Group
AEE

HitES

In aggregate

At

In aggregate
At

In aggregate
Bt

In aggregate

&t

Number of share options***
TBRAERE

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2013

BTl a)
TRBEAEEAA T M AITEREIE S BN -

At 1 April
2012
RZB-ZF
MA—R

4,000,000

2,500,000

Granted
during
the year the year the year
RER RER RER
®ii (i FS:d

Exercised
during

Lapsed
during

Date of

At 31 March grant of
2013 share options*

RZZ-Z% BRE
=A=t+-H Riti B

4,000,000 9 February 2010
“T-TF

—AAnR

23 November 2010
—T-TF

t-A=t=H

2,500,000

6,500,000

250,000

100,000

700,000

2,340,000

(250,000)

(500,000)

6,500,000

22 May 2002
ZEECF

RA-1+=H

26 March 2004
ZTTF
=ZA=t+H

100,000

700,000 10 May 2006
ZEERE

BATA

1,840,000 9 February 2010
—Z-%F

—ANR

Exercise period of
share options
granted
RitgRE
ZiTEER

9 February 2010 to

8 February 2020
—Z-ZF-ANBE
ZE-ZE-ANA

23 November 2010 to
22 November 2020

—Z-ZF+-A=t=HZ

“ECEE+-A=+ZH

22 May 2002 to

21 May 2012
“ET-ERR-+-HZE
“T-Z#RA=+-H

26 March 2004 to

25 March 2014
ZEENFE=A=1+BZE
—Z-mF=A=+HA

10 May 2006 0
9 May 2016
“2PAERATRE
—Z-"FRANA

9 February 2010 to

8 February 2020
—Z-ZF-ANBE
“TZTHZANA

Exercise price of

share options
granted**

RitigRE
ZiTHRE

HK$ per share

B(ER)

0.660

0.270

0.260

0.100

0.170

0.660
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

Name or category
of participant
Pt

ARAER

In aggregate
CHI

In aggregate

At

Others
Hitr

In aggregate

At

In aggregate
CHI

In aggregate

At

In aggregate

At

In aggregate
CHI

In aggregate

At

Number of share options***

FEMRERARAT
S

iE AR RE R 8 ()

ST _F5EI(#)

B E

Granted Exercised Lapsed
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2012 the year the year the year 2013
R-B-=F RER RER RER RZB-Z=F
mA—H & e %% =ZA=t-8
500,000 - - (500,000) -
2,300,000 — — (150,000) 2,150,000
200,000 — — — 200,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
5,000,000 — — — 5,000,000
9,200,000 - - - 9,200,000
200,000 — — — 200,000
30,290,000 — — (1,400,000 28,890,000

Date of
grant of
share options*
BRE
Rit B

11 March 2010
—T-ZF

=At+-8

23 November 2010
—E-%F

+—A=1+=H

26 March 2004
e S
ZA=t+XA

24 June 2005
—ZTRE
AAZTmA

29 June 2006
ZZERE
NAZTAR

6 July 2007
“TTLE
+AAAH

3 April 2008
“TIN\F
mA=E

3 June 2008
“FRN\F
~NA=ZR

Exercise period of
share options
granted
RinERE
ZATEHR

11 March 2010 to

10 March 2020
e Rl =
“E-TE=RA+H

23 November 2010 to

22 November 2020
—F-TF+-A=1+=R%
SECTEH-A-TCA

26 March 2004 to

25 March 2014
—EENE=A=t/AZ
—Z-RFE=RA=+HA

24 June 2005 to

23 June 2015
EREXNA-THARE
—Z-RF~A=t=A

29 June 2006 to

28 June 2016
ZTEAFERAZTNAE
Ay B A=

1 October 2008 to
5July 2017
—EE\F+A-HZ
—Z—t#tARA

3 April 2008 to

2 April 2018
“ZT)\FNA=HZE
“E-\fWAZRA

3June 2008 to

2June 2018
“ET\ERAZHE
—E-\FRAZA

Exercise price of

share options
granted**

RILERE
RATEE

HK$ per share

BT(HR)

0.610

0.270

0.100

0.100

0.380

0.3%

0410

0417
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

iE AR RE R 8 ()

New Scheme et &l
Number of share options***
BIRREE R
Granted Exercised Lapsed Date of Exercise period of  Exercise price of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of share options share options
of participant 2012 the year the year the year 2013 share options* granted granted**
2EE RZB-ZF RER RER RER RZB-ZF AR R AR RILERARE
EBRER mMA—B B G4 %% =A=t-H b=k ZiTHEHR ZITHEE
HK$ per share
Er(ER)
Directors
gz
Other employees
of the Group
rEE
HitES
In aggregate — 2,900,000 — — 2,900,000 27 March 2013 27 March 2013 to 0.162
At —T-=fF 26 March 2023
ZR=+tH —Z-=f=A-1+tAZE
—E-=%=R=+5AH
— 2,900,000 — — 2,900,000
Notes to the tables of share options outstanding during the year: FANEARTTEEARER 2 M 5T
* The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from * B 7 ENERABEREZSYBBE218R - B

the options offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain
vesting period and vary for each category of participant as specified
under the respective share option schemes.

o The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

***  There were no share options cancelled during the year.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had outstanding options to
subscribe for up to 28,890,000 shares under the 2002 Scheme
and 2,900,000 shares under the New Scheme.

BERBBIER BIZAE - IR 2 BEERE RS2 HE
ERRMZETTIRZEBEFAMRR -

o B ZITEEEMHBRSAIRET  ARBRAELR
fb R EYES A T -

Rw SN SRR R

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H XRRRBE_ZTZ=_F
51 &5 1] R B 5 £ 28,890,000 % B 15 2 i&) A 1715 BE %
1 - RIBEFFTEIE A 3R 5 % 2,900,000 B 5 2 14
RITEEREMHE -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated using the binomial model as
at the date of grant of the options:

Grantee ARA
Other employees EMEE

The binomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing
options. The significant assumptions used in the calculation
of the values of the share options were risk-free interest rate,
expected volatility, historical volatility, and dividend yield. The
measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the
dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

FEMRERARAT
S

R et &l
FEEEMINENB D 2R EE - 5REED
R BB Al B S AR
$ o

Number of options Fair value
granted during the year of share options
FARHZBRESHE BREZANTEE
HKS

BT

2,900,000 325,000

[IEA R EERAR —BEER M BIETR
T - A EERRZBERARAZEABRREEE
RRRA X - FEERIE - B SRRIE RREE o AEFE
IRzt ERRRRHBREZ AL -

ERNBARL 2 ZHAHRARRBREBEL LT
REENE - A A | B EERAFTE 2 BREE
BERETEARBIAMRAARGE T RERBIPR

BREzBERETIERRZ TRAZHMAER -
RERZ TAEH R EATERBE N FEEZ G -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

BEERTETHRAERKRD RAEEERK®
ZHEERKE

RIE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H ARRBEENTETHK
ABRARBSEA AR EZE(EXLEFRPE
&0 ([ 3B 5 R EIEIEH ) EXVED) 2 & in R ABRE R 5
F o BEEIREE %&Hﬁfﬂlﬂﬂ%XV*B%W&%S"*
%u§$ AIRBR R RAE (REREES R

MWBFéﬁMwﬁz#%&ﬂﬂzﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%‘ %k
»E) IR IRAIER ETARRIES46E5.6716BHBES

they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the  #{TEA X HEME NN a) MEE BT 2 2 AR I
SFO), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange T :
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by the Directors, were as follows:
Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company ARG ZBRZ B
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital
Note (3)
Capacity and HARRATF
nature of interest Number of BEITRA
Name of Director Notes 5H %R ordinary shares Bok
EEnA FaE EEME EERHAE BIEEQ)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (1 Interest of controlled corporations 181,682,918 24.02%
ELE P ezl VNG di
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ) Object of a discretionary 181,682,918 24.02%
EmFiasE family trust and through

a controlled corporation

EREGERZEE

T%‘K&

iR —E S A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1 These shares are held by Greenford Company (PTC) Limited
(“Greenford”) and Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation (“Bakersfield”)
as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The Bakersfield Unit Trust,
respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace Central Group (PTC)
Limited ("Ace Central”) as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a
discretionary family trust and Mr. Yip Heon Keung is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Ace Central. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip
Heon Keung is deemed to be interested in 181,682,918 shares of the
Company held by Ace Central.

2) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Ping, being one of the discretionary
objects of The New Millennium Trust for the time being, is deemed to
be interested in 181,682,918 shares of the Company. Among these
shares, 122,597,702 shares are held by Greenford as a beneficial
owner. The entire issued share capital in Greenford is held by Mr. Yip
Heon Ping.

(3)  Based on 756,355,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March
2013.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” above.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company
held for the benefit of the Company solely.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the ordinary shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by the Directors.

FEMRERARAT
S

BEERFTETHAERARO RABBRH
ZREZRRE @)

AR I EBR 4B (&)
ME -

(1) #&Z9 B Greenford Company (PTC) Limited ([ Greenford |)
I Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation ( [ Bakersfield | )
2 BIl LA The Greenford Unit Trust & The Bakersfield Unit
Trustz ZFEABMEE - 25 G 2B BN HACe
Central Group (PTC) Limited ([ Ace Central J) LA The New
Millennium Trust(—IB2ERIEET) 2ZFEAZHRE -
mEE Mg %4 BAce Centralz i —E = R —RR - RiE
FHREEED - ERR LSRR ARACe CentraliF B /Y
AR E]181,682,918 % A1 R i A fE2s ©

2 IREZEHFXRBEEG - EAThe New Millennium Trust
ERNHEF-—ZE2RREEYHR  ERTFLERBEARA
NA81,682,918 R R AR - RxERH
122,597,7028% B 15 da Greenford A B 25 A A H DA
Greenford 2 EPE EITIRANAERIFLLERF -

&

BER-T—=F= A=+—HBE%17.2756,355,0008% &
NRBDEE -
EERARAERE#ER ST EX B8]
— BRI EE o

BEES - ETEEMARARNSRELATE
FOB A R 2 SRS BN AES -

B EXFREEN  R-E—ZF=B=+—8 &
DR EREBITHA BRAR TSR IR A
2 8RR AR AR P A A RS I ()
EI52GAT 4% - RRBAILIR I RAIE5 465
5.67 676 B T 1T B4 22 5 B A E AR 2 F B SR
ZHERIHA o
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

As at 31 March 2013, Shareholders (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
company

Name of shareholder Notes

REREE {oFs3

Greenford Company (PTC) Limited (1)

Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited 2)
("Century”)

Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation M)

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

EEREROUES 2EF

B EX RS I M EEREBITRABRBG &
MERAR D 2 Bz SR B IPT I ERSN - M LB AR
BRAEMES  WESERBIARE T LELEK
BARRZBROAESFMER &R - BETRET
AR BAER] - AR R SR H A B 2 B IR AT
MAMEE T EMAANERESZFEN IR
E 7o

TERRZEBERAR

RIZZF—=F=ZA=1—8 RARARD B
MR RERAREES NS ROIEXVEBF2REINEZ
FXRMARRIREE » HATHERARRREZES &
HEGHIE3B6GETF 2 ELM I ERIORE ZRR
(RRBEFEREBTHABRINGT -

AR ] BB AFER 7 Z4

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share

capital

Number of Note (9)

Capacity and ordinary shares or Er NG|

nature of interest underlying shares EETRA

5 R ERERN BAt

ERME HERDEAE BIEE©)

Beneficially owned 122,597,702 16.21%
EnA

Beneficially owned 114,851,701 15.18%
BEnlks

Beneficially owned 59,085,216 7.81%
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

Name of shareholder
BRERER

Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited
(as trustee of
The New Millennium Trust)
(LAThe New Millennium Trust
ZEFEAED)

Mr. Yip Seng Mun
ERERTAE

Knicks Capital Inc.

Mr. Zhang Xingsheng
REEA LA

Right Advance Management Limited

Ms. Wang Li Mei
Tkt

Mr. Wang Leilei

Will City Limited
ERERAT]

Ms. Zhang Yingnan
RAEMET

Notes
P EE

REMREZERERAR

S

Capacity and
nature of interest
Sk

EREME

Trustee of a discretionary
family trust and through
controlled corporations
PRFGEREZ
XEARER

eI VNE]

Founder of a

discretionary family trust,
beneficially owned and through
controlled corporations
PRXRETEZ

BIA  ERBBR
FEBZIEHINA

owned

Beneficially
EnlER

Interest of a controlled corporation
—EXEH AR ERE

Beneficially owned
EnEs

Interest of a controlled corporation
—HEZEH AT ER

Interest of a controlled corporation
—RREHI AR s

Beneficially owned

Interest of a controlled corporation
—EXER AR EE

FTERRZEZR AR @)

AR B] BB G R (7. 4B ()

Number of
ordinary shares or
underlying shares

EER®
HERDEE

181,682,918

297,095,619

40,480,000

40,480,000

150,000,000

150,000,000

150,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital

Note (9)
BAERT
BRITRAK
Bat

HIEE©)

24.02%

39.28%

5.35%

5.35%

19.83%

19.83%

19.83%

13.22%

13.22%
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

M

Greenford is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
its entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an executive
Director.

Century is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng Mun, a
former Director.

Bakersfield is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng
Mun.

An aggregate of 181,682,918 shares are held through Greenford and
Bakersfield as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The Bakersfield
Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which are held by Ace Central
as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family
trust established with Mr. Yip Seng Mun as the founder and Mr. Yip
Heon Ping as one of the discretionary objects for the time being. Mr.
Yip Heon Keung, an executive Director, is the sole director and sole
shareholder of Ace Central.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Seng Mun is deemed to be interested
in 181,682,918 shares of the Company as the founder of The New
Millennium Trust, 114,851,701 shares of the Company as the beneficial
owner of Century. He is also personally interested in 561,000 shares of
the Company.

Knicks Capital Inc. is @ company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Xingsheng.

Right Advance Management Limited (“Right Advance”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its entire issued share
capital is registered in the name of Ms. Wang Li Mei, and such shares
are ultimately owned by Mr. Wang Leilei. Ms. Wang Li Mei is the sole
director of Right Advance.

Will City Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its entire issued share capital is held by Ms. Zhang Yingnan.

Based on 756,355,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March
2013.
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FTERRZEHER AR &

fE

BR AR 247 B (HE)

Greenford & — R & & B 2 B B i Ak 32 2 CER
HEBETRARNTEESERFRERS -

CenturyB— IR EBELHESFMKLZ AT - EE
BETRAHNTIESEBERAEESES -

ok
=

Bakersfield B —HRKBE L HESEMEKILZ AE » &
HEBTRAHERER CAERHES -

& 181,682,918 1% % 15 F1 Greenford % Bakersfield 7 B1J LA
The Greenford Unit Trust&The Bakersfield Unit Trust> &
FRAFDEER - 25 =7 2B B39 B Ace Central A
The New Millennium Trust> Z5EA D56 - MThe New
Millennium Trusts—EHE R AERER o4& BRI A KRIAZE
MFEEEREF -2 RTEURMBZ2RREET -
MITEEE MR ELEAACe Central Z ME—EE KR ME— X
= o

RIEE AR EEIEG] - 1EAThe New Millennium Trust2 &l
WA ERERLEHRAESANQT81,682,918M 871 2
#m RIERACentury 2 B B AHEE N2 F)114,851,701
PRRR (5 2 #EaS o 8 IR AR R)561,000/% B 15 2 & A #

Knicks Capital Inc. s —BREBEREZES MK A
A HEHEEITRARREBELERS -

Right Advance Management Limited([Right Advance ]) %
—EREBREZESHMK I 2 AR - HEHEETRA
NEFUERtzE2EFM MEIEELENRKEEZS
Bfn o 37§41 ARight Advancez i— & % -

THARAR A HNEBREZHEEMKILZ AT
E2HEBETRARRAMLLRE -

BER-ZT—=4F=A=+—HBE%77.2756,355,0008% 2
ARIRDETE -
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed by the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the controlling Shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) have any interests in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group, or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
performance, qualifications and competence. As incentives for
their contributions to the Group, the employees of the Group
and all the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors) may also be granted
share options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
share option scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are either determined by the
Remuneration Committee or recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market remuneration packages for executive
and non-executive directors of listed issuers in Hong Kong.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 March 2000
and has formulated and from time to time amended its written
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”).

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the Group's relationship with its auditors.

FEMRERARAT
S

FTERRZEZR AR @)

B EXHWEEN R-E—=F=A=1+—8 A2
RIWEEMEEM AL (EEAARREBITRAER
SN A Q BIRRAD AR AR 1D R A IR IR R 5 R Ei B I
BIZEXVENFE2 R 537 BB 2 SRR B B2 M) i o
AR - KERSR AR BIRIEES R EEEHIZE336
IG&EF 2 B MRz ERIAR -

EENHFURE 2R

FR SEFIARAZERBRRIFEEFEECHBE
(E%ﬁ%ﬂ%’ﬂiim%ﬁﬁlJ)mﬁiﬁi’EI%fﬁ%ﬁX%ﬁ%
X R BEAB R %Z%ﬁ&qﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁé - BERER
B 2 T IR AT R B A M| e 87 28

& IR
FHEREENBRZRE - ABRENHEREE
B 2 BE T - AEEERRAAEF(RIEH

WITEENOFRITES) A EA R BIREBAEST &)
TR TEREAMERRSHASEMERR 528 -

FMZBeRBEAREZEERE AARRLER
ERETARTERRIERTES A LTS H R
NETEFZMEMESTSRMIES -

BRERES
AARER-FEEF=ALARIEREEE ¥
2 REEREATAI EREATAI 2 FATH
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May
Lun.

The Group's audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee,
who is of the opinion that such statements comply with the
applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors considered that the Company has complied with
all the code provisions set out in the CG Code as contained in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

Auditors

On 30 March 2012, the preceding auditors of the Group, Ernst &
Young, resigned and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB")
were appointed as auditors of the Group.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB whose term of
office will expire upon the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint HLB as auditors
of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no other changes of

auditors for the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 June 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERSHE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The good corporate governance principles
adopted by the Company emphasise a quality board for leading
and controlling of the Company, effective internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices was
adopted with reference to the code provisions of the CG Code
and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) as contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out
in the CG Code throughout the year under review.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiry
made by the Company, each of the Directors gave confirmation
that he/she complied with the required standard of dealings and
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

Board of Directors

Composition

During the year under review, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. All Directors gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2013. Each executive Director has sufficient
experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her duties
effectively and efficiently. In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1)
and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had in place
three independent non-executive Directors and at least one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. They provided
the Company with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and assumed that the
Board maintains high standard of compliance with financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)
The Board as at 31 March 2013 comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping

Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin
Mr. Mah Yong Sun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

The names, biographical details of the Directors and the
relationships among them are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and
functions is posted on the website of the Exchange and the
Company’s website from time to time.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To enhance independence and divisions of functions, the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
have been segregated and have not been assumed by the same
individual during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Chairman, Mr. Yip Heon Keung,
was responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensured that good
corporate governance practices were adhered to and proper
procedures were established and followed, and that all Directors
were properly briefed and received all relevant information prior
to each Board meeting. The Chairman was also responsible for
overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the
Group.

During the year under review, Ms. Li Luyi assumed the role of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. Notice of at least
14 days for all Board meetings were given to all Directors, who
were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for each
meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
regarding the meetings are observed. The finalised agenda and
accompanying Board papers are then sent to all Directors prior
to each meeting.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board held four regular
full Board meetings. The individual attendance record of each
Director is as follows:
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Attendance
Directors = HERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) BEmsgfLE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ZmELEE 4/4
Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer) ZE—RL(EEHTE) a/4
Non-executive Directors FYITES
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin BR/NTR S A 4/4
Mr. Mah Yong Sun Se kA 3/4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITESE
Mr. Tam Chun Wan EIRETE a/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AR T 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun REmat a/4

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed
and formulated the overall strategies of the Company, monitored
financial performances and discussed the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discussed and decided on
other significant matters.

Apart from the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board met
on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter was required. The Directors would receive the agenda
and documents to be tabled for consideration and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each Board
meeting in details by keeping detailed minutes, including all
decisions made by the Board together with concerns raised and
dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft Board minutes were
circulated to all Directors for comments and approval as soon as
practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
by the Directors at any reasonable time on their request. All
Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all
times as the Chairman ensures that management will supply the
Board and its committees with all relevant information in a timely
manner.

All Directors are provided with unaudited monthly internal
financial information so as to give them a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management. The Board delegates day-to-day
operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior
management while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of
the Company’s overall strategies and policies, approval of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Company and
overseeing its management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended at Board
meetings.

Directors’ Work Commitments Outside the Group

Directors are required to disclose in a timely manner to the
Company Secretary for any change, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and the identity of such public
companies or organisations. Such information is disclosed in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Training

The Company provides newly appointed Directors with briefings
on the businesses of the Group and training materials on
corporate governance, directors’ duties and responsibilities and
other matters under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant
rules and regulations.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, which
has come into effect from 1 April 2012, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year under review, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending in-house
briefing, studying materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations and/or attending or participating
in industry-specific seminars and conferences and provided a
record of training to the Company.
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Type of trainings

Directors Bs bk
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) HreasE(FE) ABCH -Z A
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ERFEE ABCH -2 &
Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer) TRt (BEHNTE) ABCHR - -Z A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Chen Xiaoxin BR/INIRSEAE A BH - &
Mr. Mah Yong Sun SNy i A BE - 2
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

Mr. Tam Chun Wan ERE A ABCHR -Z A
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine WARLZ L ABCHR -Z A
Ms. Lai May Lun REfmrt A BR - Z

A attending in-house briefing in relation to corporate governance and
regulations

B: studying materials related to corporate governance and regulations

C: attending or participating in industry-specific seminars and conferences
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
cover the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company. All non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors have entered into
formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Details of the term of appointment of
the Directors are disclosed in the section “Directors’ Service
Contracts” of the Report of the Directors in this annual report.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong.

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment
as a Director, he/she must be able to give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment and every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting but shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board's
process and communications among Board members and with
the Shareholders and the management, and advising the Board
and its committees on all corporate governance matters. She
reports to the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive
Officer and her selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary continued
to be Ms. Lo Oi Ling who has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training required under Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company did not engage an external
service provider as its Company Secretary.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of
the Exchange and the Company’s website.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors; which all members of the Audit Committee and
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out below.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resource
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 17 June 2005 with written terms
of reference. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Tse Yuet Ling,
Justine (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lai May
Lun and one executive Director, Mr. Yip Heon Keung.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and reviewing the specific remuneration packages
of all executive Directors and senior management by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.
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During the year under review, a meeting of the Remuneration REIBEFERXN @ FMEZEeR _E——_F A +NH
Committee was held on 19 June 2012 for reviewing and ﬁiﬁ—}’ﬂam LA%F‘?&E?; EENEREREBZH
discussing the policy for remuneration of Directors and the  Bili% - M EE e ESAHEeSE 20T ¢
senior management. The individual attendance record of each
Remuneration Committee member is as follows:

Attendance
Members BB HERE
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Committee Chairman) AR (ZEEEE) 1/1
Ms. Lai May Lun REmI T 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmegfkE ”n
Nomination Committee REEEE
In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established RIELEEATAZRE ARARIER_TE——F=

the Nomination Committee on 29 March 2012 with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tam Chun Wan and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy and making recommendations to
the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board, as well as assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

AZthBERIURERZES  UHITEEERESR
B - RAZEem—2RTESERAREL(RREER
B1F)  UEMBBIFRTESBIREEERRE
Rz AR -

RAZEBEZIERBE/FITRBEE  WRHES
,ZT;E%&;EEW%%A&EZK??Fﬁ%?ghﬁk

CHIETRBEREANBERF  RANEFEZR
T% RIBLAARK - ARFHEBS IFTE R 2Bt



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

FEMRERARAT
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During the year under review, a meeting of the Nomination REEEER  BLEZ8eRN T _—FXA+TNH
Committee was held on 19 June 2012. The individual attendance 87— X &% - ITRLE@RKERBEFEEZ 28
record of each Nomination Committee member is as follows: $Ra0T -

Attendance
Members RE HERE
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Committee Chairman) ;%Iﬂ?ﬁf‘ﬁi( CE2F/E) 171
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRESE 11
Ms. Lai May Lun BEMEZ L 11
Audit Committee EREEY

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 March 2000
and has formulated and from time to time amended its written
terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out
in the CG Code. The existing Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine
and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the Group’s relationship with its auditors.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year BRZE€ROEFEANRLBRITIAEE - BEEE
under review. The individual attendance record of each Audit E@&KEZBHESH AT
Committee member is as follows:

Attendance
Members RE HERE
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Committee Chairman) BIREhkE(ZTE2TE) 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine uﬁiﬂ Bt 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun Rt 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results during the year ended 31 March 2013 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering and reviewing the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions
could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Group.

During the year under review, the Group paid HK$550,000 to the
external auditors for their audit services and HK$8,400 to their
non-audit related services.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Group, HLB, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors'
Report” of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group and has
established the Group’s internal control policies and procedures
for monitoring the internal control system. The internal control
system of the Group is designed to achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The
management and various departments conduct periodic self-
assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control policies
and procedures. Besides, the Board reviews at least annually the
overall effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s internal control system
is effective to achieve the Group’s internal control objectives
and will continue to assess the effectiveness of internal controls
by considering reviews performed by the Audit Committee,
executive management and auditors.
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Shareholders Relations

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Directors
host the annual general meeting each year to meet the
Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The Company also
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. The website of the Company has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.

Shareholders Meetings

During the year under review, an annual general meeting of the
Company was held on 8 August 2012. The individual attendance
record of each Director is as follows:
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Attendance
Directors 2= HERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) BEmgiE(FE) 11
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmEEE 0/1
Ms. Li Luyi (Chief Executive Officer) PE—RE(EHEHTE) 01
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin FR/INIR S £ 01
Mr. Mah Yong Sun BT A 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUKHITES
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRELE 11
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AR 1/1
Ms. Lai May Lun REfmit 11
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Investor Relations

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders and established a range of communication
channels between itself, its Shareholders and investors in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. During the year under
review, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one day of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expense
incurred by the requisition(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

The provisions for a Shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director are laid down in article 113 of the Articles
of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose
such person for election as a Director, signed by a Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed for election as a Director)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length of
the period during which such notices are given shall be at least
seven clear days and the period for lodgement of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day immediately after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
intention and end no later than seven days before the date of
such general meeting.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of the Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2838
2922, e-mail at ir@prosten.com.cn or mail to Unit 802, 8th Floor,
Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete thereby enabling Shareholders as well as the public to
make rational and informed decisions.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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HLB Bl # &6 F 40 AF R a
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

To the shareholders of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 50 to 132, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit, and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared

in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 18 June 2013
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2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—_fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FHET

Revenue Wz 5 57,161 67,244
Cost of sales SHEMN A (29,840) (32,033)
Gross profit ER 27,321 35,211
Other income and gains H AU A Rz 5 2,333 1,274
Selling expenses HERX (15,149) (12,552)
Administrative expenses TER X (38,242) (42,917)
Other expenses HEmRAx (5,444) (4,608)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FhEERER A RIEE B

goodwilll — (188)
Finance costs VEER 6 (263) (69)
Loss bhefore tax RRBLATE 18 7 (29,444) (23,849)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfiike, (Fx) 10 67 (1,626)
Loss for the year attributable to EATERBEAELER

equity holders of the Company B (29,377) (25,475)
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEUEE
Exchange differences on translation of MEIBINEIREER

foreign operations ME =% 707 3,301
Total comprehensive expense FREEBAZEEE

for the year (28,670) (22,174)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary 77 RZEERISTE AEWN

equity holders of the Company BREE 12
Basic AR (HK3.88) (HK3.37)

cents #l cents 71l
Diluted e N/A N/A
i A ER

Details of dividend are set out in note 28(c) to the financial

Statements.

BRABLE 2 FHIBEN M BRI RE28(C) °



Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position
e IR R

REMBZEERBRAT

31March2013 = E—=%=A=+—H —TFFR
2013 2012
—E—=F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5t FET TFET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 13 3,907 4,043
Investment property WA 14 4,490 3,444
Deposits HiA 20 — 717
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 16 831 826
Goodwill [EES 17 — —
Deferred tax asset FEETHIBEEE 18 1,396 1,303
Total non-current assets JEMENE BT 10,624 10,333
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables JEHBR TR 19 13,431 17,176
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - Fle &k
other receivables H i el 18 20 10,866 7,147
Due from Directors JERE=S 2 5B 21 655 —
Pledged deposits BT 22 12,740 247
Cash and cash equivalents ReFRReEFEY 22 39,050 67,135
Total current assets MENEEBT 76,742 91,705
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables FEITERFR 23 12,634 3,407
Other payables and accruals E b e ERIE K FERT R IR 24 9,443 14,924
Due to Directors JENES 7 208 21 — 741
Interest-bearing bank borrowing, secured B it SRITEE 25 11,400 —
Tax payable FER TS 3,915 4,708
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 37,392 23,780
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 39,350 67,925
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEAERRBER
LIABILITIES 49,974 78,258
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREBEE
Deferred tax liability FIERIEE R 18 499 493
Net assets EERE 49,475 77,765
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders A&7 F#EzHiFE AEGER
of the Company
Share capital A& A 26 75,635 75,635
Reserves i 28(a) (26,160) 2,130
Total equity S 49,475 77,765

The consolidated financial statements were approved and #&GABMBREREAR - ZT—=F A+ \BE==eHt

authorised for issue by the Board on 18 June 2013 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

D
FE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

Statements.

Yip Heon Ping

Director

KB
%

BEM 2 PR ek SR s Rk 2 HERCER Y

EREENE  YEARTAIRREZSRE -



Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
REEDEER

Year ended 31 March 2013 HZ =T —=F=A=+—HIFE
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company
NG Easz N 1

Share

premium
Share  account

Foreign

Statutory  currency Share

reserve translation option Accum-
fund reserve reserve ulated  Reserves Total

capital Ritg  EERE  AMER BE losses  sub-total equity
i Bk B¢ i B EREE  RENT RS
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
i3 ThL Thr T T ThL ThrL T ThL
note (a) note (o
fiik(a) K0
At 1 April 2012 RZE-—¥mA-A 75,635 372,468 3,349 13,612 1757 (395,056) 2,130 77,765
Loss for the year EmER - - - - - 93 (931 (9377)
Other comprehensive income for theyear,  ERE AT :
Exchange differences ontranglation of ~ MESSERES Y
foreign operations EiER - - - 707 - - 107 107
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  ERAELE/(FR)EE
for the year - - - 707 - (29,377) (28,670) (28,670)
Equity-Settled share option arrangements  hEtaE 2 ERERE: 280) - - - - 380 - 380 380
Transfer of share option reserve on BRER RS
the forfeited share options BhERE 20) - - - - (344) 344 - -
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=£=f=1-H 75,635 372,468 3,349 14,319 7793 (424,089) (26,160) 49,475
At 1 April 2011 RZE-—FmA-A 75,635 372,468 70 10311 7,952 (368,040) 23,461 99,09
Loss for the year ERER - = = = = (5475 (5419 (25479)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  ERE 2T :
Exchange differences ontranslationof ~ AEEAERELE 2
foreign operations ESZE — — — 3301 — - 3301 3301
Total comprenensive income/lexpense) — ERZENE /(R 4%
for the year - — - 3301 - (25475) (22174 (22174
Fauity-settled share option arrangements  MiBa 468 2 BRER 2(0) = = = = 843 = 83 83
Transfer of share option reserve on R hER
the forfeited share options BhEsE 28(0) - - - - (1,038) 1,038 - -
Transfer to statutory reserve fund ESEEREES - - 2579 - - (2579) - -
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=A=t-H 75635 372,468 3,349 13612 7,751 (395,056) 2130 77,765
Notes: FieE
(@  Statutory reserve fund @  ETHEEED
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises REPZE AR ([ B )RR D3RR RIEH] -
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), a portion of the profits SERF lEHHZE‘*EEZ-E‘B%?—\%IJE@;%%?HEE%LZ
of the entities which are registered in the PRC has been transferred EEREES EREHEECEREZERR é“ZlKZSO%
to the statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to use. When the o ADEER DR E — R - fiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬂ’%
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the capital of that entity, TERAEBFIRL R T AT B A - DAY — ¢F Z B8 &i“
any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be & o SR - @ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%fﬁ%%’éZ%ﬁ% DHERBEER
utilised, upon approval of the relevant authority, to offset prior year's 225% °
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory
reserve fund must be maintained at least 25% of capital after such
usage.
(b)  Foreign currency translation reserve (b)  SIMNEEZ
Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences INISHE 5 B IE B A S BB NE 2 BEFEREIIME
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign EEREAARER 2 2Y| G (AT ) EE 2 B =58 -
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation EERE M2 E WP R RN IMNERE W R 251 © 7%
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) which are recognised directly in —rmﬁ\\%lﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁz%ﬁ%”ﬁﬂﬁ BN ETS R E T
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency DEEEREA -

translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the foreign operations.



Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows
meERERER EEREERARAT
Year ended 31 March 2013 & E—ZT—=F=A=+—HIFE —T =55
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEKCRERE

ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax brEERIES R (29,444) (23,849
Adjustments for: KR T%IA -

Finance costs Wi%ER ) 263 69

Interest income FLEHA 5 (528) (548)

Investment income TERA 5 (477) (487)

Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BEK

plant and equipment Bl W 7 = )
Depreciation e 7 1,504 2,104
Write-off of property, L ES =N

plant and equipment B 2 s 7 = 66
Impairment loss recognised in MEEERN

respect of goodwill VRN i 7 = 188

Equity-settled share option arrangements DARER G E 7 BB IR Bk 28 380 843

Fair value gain on an Investment property "EME L N EERE 7 (991) (17)

Impairment allowances on trade JFEW R SRR E

receivables 7 730 —

(28,563) (21,638)

Decrease in trade receivables FEUER TR 3,182 52,523
Increase in prepayments, TENFIE - FTe Rk

deposits and other receivables oAb FE WK IBIE AN (2,925) (189)

(Increase)/decrease in due from Directors EWE S 2 5IR

(38, md (652) 1,251
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTBEFIE b0, CRi ) 9,070 (801)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and b e R 0E K e

accruals FIBORA), /G (5,577) 505
(Decrease)/increase in due to JEtEE 7 FECRD)

Directors )i (741) 739
Exchange realignment & H 460 21
Cash (used in)/generated from R (TR FELZ

operations Re (25,746) 32,411
Bank interest paid EAERITHE (263) (68)
Interest element of finance lease rental PEHER AR

payments MEERS = (M
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEENEHE (1 —
Overseas profits taxes paid BRSNS HIR (6) ©)
Taxes paid in Mainland China BT A IR (842) (1,744)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from S (AR FTELXZ

operating activities RemeFE (26,858) 30,592
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2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FHET FHT
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from KRR FEEXZ
operating activities MEeMEFHE (26,858) 30,592
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BFE 528 543
Investment income received BUIEE A 477 487
Purchases of items of property, BAVE WE &
plant and equipment HAEIEE 13 (1,335) (1,573)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE - BEK
property, plant and equipment BB B TS UE = 7
Net cash inflow upon acquisition of WEEM B A TS RA
subsidiaries SRR 34 = 21
Increase in pledged deposits [REeilEE )i (12,335) —
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEGHRARE S REF5E (12,665) (510)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEXKZRERE
ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank borrowing raised $&£/15 7 5t BRITEE 11,400 —
Capital element of finance lease rental PHREERSNRZ
payments ViNG ia = (52)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) BB EGHES/(FTR) 2
financing activities REme 8 11,400 (52)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReRRSZENCRD),
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ENFEEE (28,123) 30,030
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzRE R
of year R FEY 67,135 33,937
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXR&&) 7 528558 38 3,168
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRZEER
AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 39,050 67,135
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRRE
EQUIVALENTS LEYDIW
Cash and bank balances R&e MIRITERS 22 36,543 64,669
Non-pledged time deposits with original INEESTEIEN
maturity of less than three months when —@AARNEIEZ
acquired AR BATE R 22 2,507 2,466
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RGN R &
the consolidated statement of financial HEREREXRZENZ
position and consolidated statement of RekReEEY
cash flows 39,050 67,135




Statement of Financial Position

RO TR
FEREIER AR AT
31March2013 = E—=%=A=+—H T FFR
2013 2012
—E-=F —FT——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MIsE FET TFET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIEE 15 15,769 18,594
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE ~ AT R EAM
other receivables FE U KT8 20 148 146
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEY 22 54 55
Total current assets MENEEBR 202 207
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals E b e ERIE K FERTEIR 24 1,292 2,085
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (1,090) (1,884)
Net assets EEFEE 14,679 16,710
EQUITY =
Share capital k&N 26 75,635 75,635
Reserves E 28(b) (60,956) (58,925)
Total equity A% 14,679 16,710

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue  HIEHEIER —_ZE—=F A+ /\HEEEZHEX
by the Board on 18 June 2013 and were signed on its behalf by: BHEHE  WERUTATIRRESSEE

Yip Heon Keung Yip Heon Ping
Chairman Director
EHE R H[EF

E1 EF



Notes to the Financial Statements
IS ERR M5

31March2013 =FE—=F=A=+—H

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Unit 802,
8th Floor, Dominion Centre, 43-59 Queen'’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints”)) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Laws of Hong Kong
(Chapter 32). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment property which has been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intragroup balances, transactions and unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.
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2.1

22

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant

to the Group and effective for the first time for the Group’s

current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the above revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Issued But Not Yet Effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs which are relevant to the Group that have
been issued but are not yet effective in these consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income!

HKAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits?

HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to HKFRSS
2009-2011 Cycle Issued in June 20122

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of

and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

A ow N o

Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance2
Investment Entities?

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have any
significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position unless specifically stated below. The Group
expects to apply these new and revised HKFRSs when they
first become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis.

The presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

HKAS 19 (Revised) “Employee Benefits”

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of changes in
defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets
when they occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor
approach” permitted under the previous version of HKAS
19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to
be recognised immediately through other comprehensive
income in order for the net pension asset or liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or
surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return
on plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are
replaced with a “net-interest” amount, which is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.
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2.3 Hong Kon%\‘Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 and amendments
to HKFRS 7 “Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities” and the related disclosures
The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirement) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement.

Amendments to HKFRSs “Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle”

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

(@ HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
clarifies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in
the related notes to the financial statements when
it voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain
a complete set of financial statements. In addition,
the amendment clarifies that the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and that
change has a material effect on the statement of
financial position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period are not required to
be presented.

(b)  HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to
any income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specially, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. All other debt investment and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entity may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification,
measurement and presentation of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
“Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

Transition Disclosures”

In December 2011, the HKICPA issued the amendments
to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7. The amendments defer the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2013
to 1 January 2015, with early application permitted. The
amendments also modify the transitional requirements
from HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 2.3 2 B# 8 4K 4EMEE BB 1S B R

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (revised)
and HKAS 28 (revised).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below:

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities” will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only
one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control should be classified. HK
(SIC)-Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers” will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
venture depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under
HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting or proportionate consolidation.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”, HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint
Ventures” and HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates”. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance in HKFRS 10 on the application of these five
HKFRSs for the first time.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except
where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to
the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required
to measure its interest in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or 10ss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o Obtain funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o Commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o Measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these five
standards may not have a significant impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.
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2.3

2.4

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” will
be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

The application of the HKFRS 13 might affect the amounts
reported and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

2.3

2.4

B 284 18 1R R A Y B B B 75 B R

8l (&)

BRI RREAE13% A P EETE]

EEMNGRRERFEBRELGH A FEEAE
RAFEEFERBENE 1S - ZERRER
FEE BIAEQXFEENERIBEATE
B ENRERTE - BBMBEHHFERNF13%R
HEEZ  AERARNEMTEYBHRERSRE
AR FEEFENABEAHEEFEREN
TRMTARIFESRTAER - HEERRERI
—RME - BN RRERF1RNWERE
BRRTEAMREEERER - flm - RIFEE
MSERREAFERIEMTE - ®E| RKE
RECBRTARR=-MAFEESRIEE(LNE
EBE  ARERERERERT SV RRERE
1RIAER - WREEBBERZAMBEEERA

& o

FERE BTG ERRERF IR AEH2REH

ELYE  WEBARAEEGANBRRIEL
FRROWE -

TEEHBERE

GE P

MERRIEA AR EE KM EEN AR EE
BR - A HR SRS 2 BEE -

MB AR FERE B R BB B ARRTFZ
BER - ARRNKE AR ZIRERK AR
REREBARK

wE
W B SE TS R A 2 P B IR SE S M B BRI 2 A AR
(R B BR) R ESHREREE(E ) AL -

RENRETNS  BEIEEASESERSE
B (FREELEMAR)  ZFREELE
RIFRER BN A HrELE Z RS -



Notes to the Financial Statements
BRI R B 5

31March2013 =Z—=F=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Goodwiill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income/income statement. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
property), the asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises (only if there are revalued assets in
the financial statements), unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
(@ A person, or aclose member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group, or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold building 2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investment property (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, the are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether
the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate.
When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management'’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
at designation.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flow that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the income statement in other expenses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
income statement in accordance with the policies set out
for "Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management'’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification
to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial
assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and the
Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of
the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss
over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cashflows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment l0ss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such an unguoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is removed from the comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the income statement — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available of sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowing and other monetary
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amount and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without
any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such technigues include using recent arm'’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are no restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
Statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax asset and liability for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asset is reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and is recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asset and liability are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax asset
against current tax liability and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recoghition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ solution integration services and wireless mobile
value-added services income, when the relevant
services have been rendered;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c) investment income, when the policyholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
a market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in the employee retirement
scheme operated by the relevant local government bureau
in Mainland China. The contributions to be borne by the
Group are calculated at a certain percentage of the salaries
and wages for those eligible employees.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
Statements:

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of
the entities comprising the Group, judgement is required to
determine and consider the currency that mainly influences
sales prices of services and of the country jurisdiction
whose competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of services; the currency that
mainly influences labour and other costs of providing
services; the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and the currency in which
receipts from operating activities are usually retained. The
functional currencies of the entities comprising the Group
are determined based on management’s assessment of
the primary economic environment in which the entities
operate. When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its judgement
to determine the functional currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value.

Impairment of trade receivables and other
receivables

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is
made based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the
receivables as well as doubtful debt expenses or write-back
of doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation of fair value of an investment property
As described in note 14 to the financial statements,
the investment property was revalued at the end of the
reporting period on an open market, existing use basis by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
Such valuation was based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources, including
current prices in an active market for similar properties
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation of share options

As described in note 27 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers to assist in the valuation of the share
options granted during the year. The fair value of options
granted under the share option schemes is determined
using the binomial model. The significant inputs into the
model were share price at grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price and expected volatility of the underlying
shares. When the actual results of the inputs differ from
management’s estimate, it will have an impact on share
option expense and the related share option reserve of
the Company. The fair value of the share options granted
during the year by the Company was approximately
HK$325,000 (2012: n/a). Further details of the share options
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2013 was approximately
HK$1,396,000 (2012: HK$1,303,000). Further details are
contained in note 18 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Current income taxes

The Group's subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax in
the period in which such determination is made.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has only one single operating segment as the
Group is principally engaged in wireless value-added
services and related business which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance. No geographical
information is presented as the Group’s customers and
operations are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2013, revenues of
approximately HK$20,337,000 (2012: HK$17,530,000) and
approximately HK$15,027,000 (2012: HK$24,880,000)
were derived from services rendered to two (2012: two)
customers. No other single customers contributed 10% or
more to the Group's revenue for both 2013 and 2012.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. Wz - AW A RE
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WzRBNANE B 7 S 5%E - 5 FRNFTIR RS 2 3%
the net invoiced value of services rendered during the year. TR o
An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, other income and gains AREEWZ - BB A RKmoTmT :
is as follows:
Group
KEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue =
Services income BRFEUA 57,161 67,244
Other income and gains Hig A R i
Bank interest income IRITFBUA 528 548
Investment income EWA 477 487
Net foreign exchange gains PE H Mz F 58 = 185
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEMEE 2 K
equipment = 7
Fair value gain on an investment property  R&ME 2 A FEEWZ
(note 14) (P 5E14) 991 17
Others Hi 337 30
2,333 1,274
6. Finance Costs 6. BEER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MISBRASITAT
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E2—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on: FE
bank loan IRITER 165 —
bank overdrafts RITBEX 98 68
Interest on a finance lease B E 2 A — 1

Total borrowing costs BEN B 263 69
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7.

Loss Before Tax

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

7. BREiATEE

AEE 2 BBATERA R, (G A) TFI&EER

(crediting): E
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Cost of services provided* TR ARFS A A 29,840 32,033
Depreciation* PreE 1,504 2,104
Minimum lease payments under operating A NAE&FHE
leases in respect of; SEMAENK
Land and buildings THIREF 2,583 2,655
Motor vehicles AE 111 28
Auditors’ remuneration ZEA N & 550 500
Employee benefits expense (including EERNAXZ(BEEEME
Directors’ remuneration (note 8))*#: (P 5E8) ) *# -
Wages, salaries, allowances and TE - #Ho - 2B KB =
benefits in kind 23,628 24,978
Equity-settled share option N A E v B
arrangements 380 843
Pension scheme contributions RIKSET B
(defined contribution schemes) REMRETED 3,920 4,026
Severance payments Bl 155 902
28,083 30,749
Foreign exchange differences, net M H =R FHE 53 (185)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  #12% « B & R4 7 il 4 — 66
Impairment allowances on trade FEMER SR E RS (F5E19)
receivables (note 19) 730 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BEMEE 2 RS
equipment = @)
Impairment loss recognised in respect R ERRARESE
of goodwill — 188
Research and development costs? T 35 M BB Ak A 4,646 4,342
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA (528) (548)
Investment income REBA (477) (487)
Fair value gain on an investment property &% 7 N BB
(note 14) (MF7E14) (991) (17)

& The cost of services provided includes depreciation and
employee benefits expense totaling approximately HK$4,412,000
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$4,345,000), which is
also included in the respective total amount separately above.

# The research and development costs for the year include
approximately HK$4,646,000 (2012: HK$4,342,000) relating
to employee benefit expense for research and development
activities, which is also included in the employee benefits

expense separately disclosed above.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension schemes in future years (2012: nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

REMRIRARAT
e

8. EXHE

FRESMSBIRAIZER ETHRAREE R RIE
BIE161EBBINT

Group

KEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 300 300

Other emoluments: Ha e -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERLREMAZE 5,539 7,203
Equity-settled share option arrangements DAz &S E 2 BEIEZ BE 149 550
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIMHR 107 102
5,795 7,855
6,095 8,155

A Director was granted share options in prior years, in
respect of her service to the Group, under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised in the income
statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
Directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive Directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors
during the year were as follows:

RBEFE  —BEZHRRAAEERERE MR
EAN BB BB ERE - E—TFER
R REMTE27 - ZFBBE 2 2 FEETIR
RERHETE  YEXREEBHEAERERER -
MAARNEE M BIRE 2 SREFT A LRE =
SWEERA -

(@) BYFHTES
REASNTEILIFATEFT 2RO

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRELE 100 100
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine SRt 100 100
Ms. Lai May Lun REMmut 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive Directors during the year
(2012: nil).

FRIEE M EN TIBIENTE = 2 B
S(ZE——F &) -
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEMTw
(b) Executive Directors and non-executive (b) BFITEEREHNTES
Directors
The emoluments of each executive and non- BTN ITEENEEANTTEZMNE
executive Director and the chief executive officer AR
were as follows:
2013
—E-=F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
inkind contributions Total
Fees ¥& 2EHR K€ remuneration
e EMFR Bt e st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAET THET TiER
Executive Directors: HITES
Mr. Yip Heon Ping Em¥rsE — 2,145 14 2,159
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Rt E — 2,725 14 2,739
Ms. Li Luyi FR—AT
(chief executive officer) (BR#TE) — 669 79 748
— 5,539 107 5,646
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin BRI = = — —
Mr. Mah Yong Sun S Foipite = = — —
— 5,539 107 5,646
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Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (continued)

REMRIRARAT
e

8.

EEME @)
(b) BITESRIEHTES@)

2012
—E-—F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees %o EHR BhE  remuneration
we EMFE IR e mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAEL THET TET
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmFrsE — 2,558 12 2,570
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Emsafit — 3,052 12 3,064
Ms. Li Luyi FR—L
(chief executive officer) (BBEHTE) — 1,593 78 1,671
— 7,203 102 7,305
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin BRI E - - - -
Mr. Mah Yong Sun SHoEE — - - -
— 7,203 102 7,305

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the expense of
equity-settled share option arrangements recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in related to share options granted to Ms. Li Luyi (chief
executive officer) in prior years amounted to approximately
HK$149,000 (2012: HK$550,000).

There was no arrangement under which a Director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2012: nil). During the year, no
emoluments have been paid by the Group to the Directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

HE-_ZT-—=—FZA=1+—HIFE REs2
ARERNEREBRAFTERTEE — L&
(HENITE BRI 2 ARS8 2 B BE
2 FZ#75149,000% T (=ZF — =4 : 550,000
BIL) °

FALEERLEFENTE RELRBREEM
e ZH(ZF——F : &) - £ AKEYL
BRESHEMNARRSFALINHNE - UIE
ARSI EFENAREB RN AR E R 2 526
KA RBERAE(E -
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2012: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2012:
two) non-Director, highest paid employees for the year
were as follows:

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9. hEER=HESR
FRNELRBHEERE=A("F—F =
£)EF - AHSHIBTR LU BRRA e
i o FNEBWE (=7 B FEER
BHERZEHENT

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E=—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEWRIZE 3,704 2,470
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEI R 15 12
3,719 2,482

The number of non-Director, highest paid employees

MeBRATEB 2 FEETREFHEE ABD

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as T @
follows:
Number of employees
EEA™
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 702 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,000/8 7T — 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 5.2 3,500,000/ 7T 1 —
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10. Income Tax (Credit)/Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. The under-provision of Hong Kong
profits tax represented Hong Kong profits tax calculated at
the rate of 16.5% on the assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 March 2012. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the

Group operates.

REMRIRARAT
e

10. FAIBR (%), Fx

HRAEBERARNFEAY BESEMREBE
HEZ BRG] - S EERFBNER B
B BENGHBBETREBEZE_T——F=
A=+ BUFEREBEL 2 BRBUEMIR
16.5% 2 HEFHE 2 BBFIGSH - HitvibR 2 fE
AR M TR B A S BIE 2 XK 2 BR% A
EERE M RITHEEAENIA -

Group
AEEH
2013 2012
—E-=F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current — Hong Kong BIHA— &8
Under-provision in prior years TEBENE 1 —
Current — Elsewhere BIER — H Atb [
Charge for the year FRTH 6 6
Over-provision in prior years BAFERERE — (748)
Deferred (note 18) EIE(FI5E18) (74) 2,368
Total tax (credited)/charged for the year FRFBE(ER), XL BE (67) 1,626
A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to loss before PUERARAATI RE T BB A A &L al ik

tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and its principal subsidiaries operate to the

tax charge at the effective tax rate, is as follows:

%@Z&Eﬁ+#%2@ﬁmﬁﬁzmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BREBRMETE 2B N2 HRIT ¢

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—2—-= —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiBT
Loss before tax PRETAIE 1R (29,444) (23,849)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of BRBFEHRME165%(ZF——F
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 16.5%) qu;:Z%RIEwa (2,437) (3,498)
Tax credit at the Mainland China RABIA M EER E25.0%( ZF——4 :
statutory tax rate of 25.0% (2012: 25.0%) 25.0%)5TE 2 HIEE R (3,666) (666)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed by the Group AEEZH  BIRERARE 670 (5,155)
Under/(over-provision) in prior years BEFEBRETR/ (BEEE) 1 (748)
Income not subject to tax BARBIIA (407) (844)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAFAY 4,434 10,343
Tax losses not recognised RERR 2 HIAEE 1,338 2,194
Tax (credited)/charged at the Group's effective rate 1A &EBEEF R E 2 HIE
(%), Fx (67) 1,626
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10.

11.

12.

F=RA=+—H

Income Tax (Credit)/EXpense (continued)

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law (the “Corporation
Income Tax Law") of the PRC being effective on 1 January
2008, the PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all
enterprises.

Pursuant to the notice on the Implementation Rules for
Grandfather Relief under the Corporate Income Tax Law
issued by the State Council of the PRC on 26 December
2007, effective from 1 January 2008, the preferential tax
enjoyed by Unison Networking Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
a subsidiary of the Group operating in the PRC, is subject to
the annual renewal requirement.

Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co., Ltd. was approved
to qualify for the “Software Enterprise Scheme” for a five-
year period from 13 June 2011 to 31 December 2015 and
enjoyed an exemption of PRC corporate income tax for the
first two years and a 50% reduction for the following three
years.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the
company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a
loss of approximately HK$2,411,000 (2012: HK$3,467,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 28(b)).

Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company approximately HK$29,377,000
(2012: HK$25,475,000), and the numbers of ordinary shares
of 756,355,000 (2012: 756,355,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share has not been disclosed as no dilutive
potential equity shares in existence as at 31 March 2013
and 2012.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

10.

11.

12.

TSR (%), P

BIENR—_EZENF— A —BERZHFBEHTEMS
BOA([EMGBEYE]) - FTBEZPBIMER
FRG—B25% °

BIEFEBEERERN ST tF+ A =+/"BE
IR =TT NF— A —BRERZ AR ERT
ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁmMMZﬁm AERP
RS 2 B A R A E RS R RS (E8) B
@27¥ﬁ25§mfmtiiﬁ

EREBERMEERARES I TEERS R
[EhEstE] > RARF  BZT——F KA
T=AEE-_FT-—AF+-A=+—Hi1 ' &7
REMFRERRANTBEEEMSH - WRHER
—FZRRB0BEEMERHIARE

ARRIESR A ARGESR

 E_T—=F=ZA=1+—HILFE  ~ARE
A ARG A BB REEEY2411,000%
(=T — =4 : 3467,00087T) * WERAKA
B2 SRR IR (K 5E28(D)) °

ADFE B SEABEER
&5 18

EREAREEBDIREBEAQARLAESEAA
JE (5 4 N 518 49 29,377,000 T (—Z & — —
& @ 254750008 70) R FANE BITEBRK

756,355,000f% ( =& — — £ : 756,355,000/% ) 5
é o

HR-ZE—=Fr-_T——F=-A=+—HIE
BEEEEak)  BUBERESREEES -
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

REMRIRARAT
e

13. M3 - BB K&iE

2013 Group
—E-=F X5E
Office and
computer
Leasehold equipment,
building in furniture
Mainland and fixtures
China  Leasehold WAER Motor
RebERE improvements  ZHGRME vehicles Total
ZHERT HENE#E HAREE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Cost: BAE:
At beginning of year REA 1,385 976 12,849 5,474 20,684
Additions NE = - 307 1,028 1,335
Exchange realignment [ % - 8 134 68 210
At 31 March 2013 RZB—=%F=A
=+-—H 1,385 984 13,290 6,570 22,229
Accumulated depreciation and  BiHTERAME :
impairment;
At beginning of year RN 246 568 11,910 3,917 16,641
Provided for the year EREE 35 265 514 690 1,504
Exchange realignment AR — 7 124 46 177
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=%=H
=t+-H 281 840 12,548 4,653 18,322
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 March 2013 R-E—-=%=H
=t+-H 1,104 144 742 1,917 3,907




Group
F5E
Office and
computer
Leasehold equipment,
building in furniture
Mainland and fixtures
China Leasehold BAER Motor
RERERM  improvements  BRSHRE vehicles
JHEET HEMERE GRREER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL AL FEL FAT

Cost: BAE
At beginning of year RER
Additions NE
Disposals HE
Write-off ik
Exchange realignment B 5 FHE

At 31 March 2012 R-E——%=A8
=t-H

Accumulated depreciation and ~ BEHFERRE :
impairment:
At beginning of year RER 11,866 15,189
Provided for the year FREE 693 2,104
Disposals HE (615) (615)
Write-off | (443) (593)
Exchange realignment B H iR 409 556

At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=f
=+-H

Carrying amounts: BEE
At 31 March 2012 W-E-—%=AH
=1+—A
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14. Investment Property 14. EMZE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 April RO A—B ZREE 3,444 3,278
Fair value adjustment (notes 5 and 7) NYPEERAB(HTFSRT) 991 17
Exchange realignment & H 55 149
Carrying amounts at 31 March W=A=+—BZAE 4,490 3,444
The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 REBEREMERTPERTAPIERAR(A
March 2013 by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an EAZNER B0 A AR 2 B A B BN ERD -
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, not B IEE R R B A B AR T
connected to the Group who have appropriate qualifications A2 B IERITREUARMERER -
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties —=F=A=+—HE % 4A4490,0008 (=
in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by T — 4 : 3,444,000 7) - BRMEII2EE
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for PR S ER 2 TR MmES °
similar properties, at approximately HK$4,490,000 (2012:
HK$3,444,000) on an open market, existing use basis.
The Group's investment property is held under a long term REERBRABNZE 2REYMZ - Hivlt &
lease and its address is A B4t B i [& R B FIINAET 2 B b BRI & 3R B P AN KA 2,365 255012 7 [
365R2557 127/ 18 70807 % (Unit 807, Level 7, Entrance 1, 18807 % - AEE=EE 2R o
Building 25, No. Yi 36, Dongzhimenwai Street, Dongcheng
District, Beijing, the PRC, for identification purpose only)
which is a residential unit.
15. Investments in Subsidiaries 15. RIBARIZIRE
2013 2012
—B-=F —=——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRAD - =R 27,445 27,445
Due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A AR IE 383,988 386,798
Due to subsidiaries FEIHI B A R IE (1,814) (1,799)
409,619 412,444
Impairment RE (393,850) (393,850)

15,769 18,594
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interest-free and will not be repayable within the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the management assessed
the recoverable amounts of the interests in subsidiaries
after considering profitability, cash flow position, financial
position, forecast business development and future
prospects of the subsidiaries. Based on this assessment,
the Directors consider that the carrying amounts of

15. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2013

15. RMTB AR ZIRE @)
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, FEUY (FERD B AR ZUE AEEE - 28 &E
A

interests in subsidiaries net of impairment losses

recognised approximate to their recoverable amounts.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

PR & BR R AR 1218 A AEL -

R-E—=FER-_FE——F=H=+—H B8
B BB A R 2 BREE
AR © TERT TR MR R AT S 1& A BT
BARER 2K EIE5E - IRIFMIBT G EF
RERNB AR ER 2 FEENREERRES
B EE IO REAE -

C REREAMM

R-ZF—=F=ZfA=1—H ARFEEMEBLQ

March 2013 are as follows: RIZ BT

Place of Nominal value Percentage

incorporation/ of issued of equity

registration and ordinary share/ attributable to

operations registered capital the Company
Name EMAL BRTLER N Principal activities
£ TMkEE DS HMEAZEE BEEEAL TEER

(2013 and 2012)

(ZB-Z%R

=%-=%)
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$21,025 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 21,0255 7T REER

RERUHE /BB
Prosten Technology Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
RENBARRA BE 1,000,000 7T REER
Prolink Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$5 100 Investment holding
AR AR A B 5B REER
Worldly Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding
MEFMARAR B 10,0007 7T REERK
Welltop Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
HERERR A B 1,000 7T REFER
Prosten Technology (Shanghai) PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000 100 Provision of wireless mobile
Co., Ltd.* R B AR 3,500,000F 7T value-added services
REBRBARR(LB)BRAR R G EIEERE
Unison Networking Services PRC/Mainland China US$1,500,000 100  Provision of wireless mobile
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.** RE B AR 1,500,000 7T value-added services
REBRBEMRE( L) BERAR R RSB L ERS
Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100  Provision of wireless mobile
Co Ltd.* BB AR AR1,000,0007C value-added services
EREREERRERAR REESBELERS
& Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC 3 REPBIEEFM2INGBEERE -

Law.

fald Registered as sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise.

> EZ AR ERE -
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15.

16.

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

Except for Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Available-for-sale Investments

FEMRERARAT
e

15. PB AR ZIRE @)

KxProsten (BVI) Limitedsh - Fra E M B A 715
HRARBIEEREE -

ERFIIARESRAEIEFEAFR 2 REALE
RAKBEEEFELIRZRDZAAANBR
A -EEZRA JLEMHMBATNZHBERSRE
EBN IR °

16. AIHEERE

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Club debentures, at cost BAES - R 831 826

As at the end of the reporting period, club debentures
were stated at cost as the Directors are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant.
The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near
future.

RBEHR - EMEFRIAIER - RASAF
BEMAHZAESERK  EFRA/XFEER
REFSERTE - AEBEEN T AR KRB EZEE
# o
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Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU"):

—  Design and distribution of mobile games

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at each reporting
period, or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Directors had
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU that
total impairment loss in the amount of approximately
HK$188,000 was recognised as the recoverable amount
of the CGU was less than the carrying amount of the CGU.
The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based
on value-in-use calculations. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
Directors covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations were regarding to a
discount rate of 10.16% and a zero growth rate. The
Directors estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the CGU. The growth rates
were based on past performance and its expectations for
the development of the market.

17. Goodwiill 17. 52
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost: B
Acquisitions through business combinations i i@ % 754 G+ U i 188 188
At 31 March R=A=+—H 188 188
Accumulated Impairment losses: ZETRERE :
Impairment losses recognised E R EEE (188) (188)
At 31 March W=R=+—H (188) (188)
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H — —
Impairment testing on goodwill BEZRENR

BEDARENARNEOEETIRSELS
f(FREELEM]) :

Rat MEITBBEE

AEENSEREBEBBETRERNR - i
BPRBREBERER(E - RIS EAEMETTR
BRI -

BT —F-A=t—HLFE EFCH
BREELBMAKROSHE  BRARRSE
ARz Al E e BERNEREE - 5 E R
BEEIBETEA1880008 T - REELEM 2]
WElERREREENELERE - AHEERE
RARESIE SR TF R M RAEREE Y
BenEfaR - FREEAEZCIERRY
K1016% 2 FREXRTIRER - EXTHRAR
REFTIZHEBREEE AT IRSELE
2 BB R AT RAFHTIRE - BRER
BERBEREETIGRRE FARTE
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18. Deferred Tax 18. IRIEFLIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FRERIBEERBERFRIEHIT

the year were as follows:

Deferred tax asset ELEBBEEE
Deferred tax asset arising from losses available for A FVE S R R FE SR T M| 2 JEs 48 P EE AR 2 B ZE
offsetting against future taxable profits. TRIBEEE o
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
At beginning of year REY] 1,303 3,615
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FRARGEEEEKRERTA
statement of comprehensive income (F0B) Z dEFEFS 18 (MEE10)
during the year (note 10) 74 (2,368)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A 19 56
At 31 March W=RAR=+—H 1,396 1,303
Deferred tax liability EEHESRE
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At beginning of year REFA]) 493 472
Exchange realignment P& 7 S EE 6 21

At 31 March R=A=+—H 499 493
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18.

19.

F=RA=+—H

Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the respective jurisdictions of the foreign investors.

For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

IRAEFHIA ()
BB B > 2FERE - BRR B T
THNELEAEINGEE TR IS IL10%TE

% - AR EH —FT\F-A—REER
WEAR-—ETLF+-_A=T—BRZEHM -
i o Bl A ELAR MR 2 /B SMR B & PR BA R R AT
BRI - B RE S M INEE 2 TR K o

REEZERRER/S% - Bt - REBARR

is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends FEIAHA Y 2 B AR T NF—A—H
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland BESEZBNDIKZIREFANTEINT
China in respect of earnings generated after 1 January
2008.
Trade Receivables 19. FEURERFR
Group
AEE
2013 2012
=2-= —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEUAR X 14,655 17,664
Impairment allowances BB (1,224) (488)
13,431 17,176
The Group's trade receivables, which generally have credit BIBEHEENZRE  AEEZERERR K
terms of one month to three months (2012: one month to HE—EAZ=@AZEER(ZE—=4F:
three months) pursuant to the provisions of the relevant BAZ=EA) - FUEEFERE RME 2 IRET

contracts, are recognised based on services rendered and
carried at the original invoice amount, and an estimate of
impairment of trade receivables is made and deducted
when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.
There is a significant concentration of credit risk as about
28% (2012: 39%) of the balance represented a receivable
from the customer with the largest trade receivable at 31
March 2013. Trade receivables are unsecured and non-
interest-bearing.

PARER R IR R IA 3 E S REFER - WAET AT REUR
Bl & 20 2B 1E H FEURBR FORE G aT - ST A

Nk - AREFEEAETEERR - RERK
28%(ZT——F : 9%) 2 EHMRN_T—=F

= A=+ — AR AR 25 2 $E -
R ER S A MR R T A8 -
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19. Trade Receivables (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of
impairment allowances, and based on the month in which

the services were rendered is as follows:

REMRIRARAT
e

19. FEUWERFK (&)

7 5 B M B (A I AL 0 48 TR AR SR A R
B AR ZERAIFIT -

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within 3 months =EAR 9,943 15,073
4 to 6 months EPNEPE 2,020 1,728
7 to 12 months +ET @A 927 229
Over 1 year fRiE — 541 146
13,431 17,176

The movements in impairment allowances of trade JEW R FOR B R < FE T -
receivables are as follows:

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of year ) 488 465
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI E RSB (7)) 730 —
Exchange realignment & H 6 23
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,224 488

The above allowances for impairment of trade receivables
are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables
with carrying amounts before allowances of approximately
HK$1,224,000 (2012: HK$488,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers whose balances have
been overdue for a long time.

b e R BR SR 2 R B B R A sk E B B R (B FE
WERSRIEIL 2 Bl - HEB BRI REBED A
1,224,000 7T ( —=ZF — =4 : 488,000/ 7T) © &
Bl 2 35 B FE UK BR 2 B B RS RS B BRI 3k 2 B P 4
FRAERE o
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19. FEUWHRZR (&)

AR R ERE 2 FEUER R R IRRBUE R R ) 1R
EEIHIE 2RO T

19. Trade Receivables (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables, net of impairment
allowances, that are not considered to be impaired, based
on the due date, is as follows:

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Neither past due nor impaired I 4 260 B SlORU (B 5,404 133
1to 3 months past due Bafl—E==EA 4,539 14,940
4 to 6 months past due [N Y] 2,020 1,728
7 to 12 months past due Bt E+ @A 927 229
Past due for more than 1 year EaHEE—F 541 146
13,431 17,176

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to several customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the Directors are of the opinion that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

W B SR E < RUGRIRERB R TP AR - K
FRAYETREERE -

BEAHERBENE KA BAKEE RIFE
FEBNETELEFAM - RENGERR &
ERR BRREEBIEEEARYBEAE
8 BRARZEKE - REBANZEERE
IREREE o AN E WL L F SRR A (T
meEk fFh M E SR ERE -
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20. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 20, TEfI351E - 574 R H b fEU =18

Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E2-=F —FT-—-F =ZEB-=Ff =—FT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT FERT FAET

Prepayments TERTEIE 1,314 1,410 148 146
Deposits and other receivables &< & E 4 fE Y z0I8 9,552 6,454 — —
10,866 7,864 148 146
Less: Current portion B RENE Y (10,866) (7,147) (148) (146)
Non-current portion e BN E — 717 — —
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. i EESEmAR(E - srA LSS Sl
The financial assets included in the above balances relate BEAMAWENREELSEZERFIBER -
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.
21. Due from/(to) Directors 21. U (R ES 2 /IA
(a) Due from Directors (a) EREEZFRE
Particulars of amounts due from Directors, disclosed BIEE B R EHEDIZE 16 1BIEIEEE 2 el E
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong EFIBEFBWT ¢

Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Group
REE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 1 April
2013 the year 2012
—B—=F FRES —E-_fF
ZA=t—H HREESHE mMA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name A FExT FExT FAT
Mr. Yip Heon Ping BEmTkaE 156 994 _
Mr. Yip Heon Keung HmagkaE 499 926 —

655 —
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21. Due from/(to) Directors (continued)

(@) Due from Directors (continued)
The amounts due from Directors are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The balances relate to due from Directors for which
there was no recent history of default.

(b) Due to Directors
The amounts due to Directors were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

21. FEU () EE 2 B (%)

(a) FBWESZFEE)
RUREZ 2 FHEBEER RERARE
KEFEE -

HEWE ST SRR 2 AT A B
RIZERER -

(b) ENEZ=ZXKA
ENEZZFAREER 2B RARE

SRES (I o

22. Re MRS FEY N ERFR

Deposits
Group Company
AEH FIN/NET|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EgE-=F —FT——F == —ZT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT FET FHET
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTEHERR 36,543 64,669 54 55
Time deposits TFHFER 15,247 2,713 — —
51,790 67,382 54 55
Less: Pledged time deposits for & : ZtiRIT{EERKR 2
banking facilities EHFER (12,740) (247) = —
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 39,050 67,135 54 55

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to approximately
HK$50,442,000 (2012: HK$66,841,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

AEBPREPRAARE ([ ARE DFHEZR
& R ERTT 45 #R DA K JE BT 3049 450,442,000 7T
ZT— 4 : 66,841,00087T) ° ARETA B
MHRAEMEE RGP B AH 2 INEETR
161 ARKERE - SERMNESERTE @ AEE
EEFBERRETINER ZEBRZBITHEAR
kSR B H A EE o
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REMBERERAR

22.

23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged
Deposits (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Pledged deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure a bank loan and other banking facilities granted to
the Group. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon
the repayment of relevant bank loan and other banking
facilities and are therefore classified as current assets.

Trade Payables

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the month of services rendered,
is as follows:

—T-=FFH
22. We NBESEYNEIEPER(5#)

23.

RITFFRIEE B RITFHRNREE 2 F =X
AR BRHERERNARES AR E=(
ATE  BIAKEERZRSTEME @ WK
B2 RHERESRAEAR - RITEHRRDE
RERERFRNOPRYETREECHKAEE
RYEFZIRTT ©

EHEMERECER TRITUERETAREZ
RITERREMBITEEZFR - CEIPRTF
FEPNMEERRRTER R EMRITERRER
B RO BERRBEE -

ANE =N

RIRE R Z BN RR (RIBREIREE A ) 2
BRECATINT -

Group

REE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF T fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Within 3 months =@ARN 3,945 —
4 to 6 months N E A 5,057 —
7 to 12 months +tE=E+ @A 165 268
Over 1 year BiE—F 3,467 3,139
12,634 3,407
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24. Other Payables and Accruals
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24. EAtb FEf 5IA K e AT RR

Group Company
rEH NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
=== —T—-F ZE-= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHET TETT

Other payables HAth e RIE 3,674 4,181 — —
Accruals et R A 5,769 10,743 1,292 2,085
9,443 14,924 1,292 2,085

25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowing, Secured

At 31 March 2013, the Group had a secured bank borrowing
with remaining balance of approximately HK$11,400,000
(2012: nil). The bank borrowing is repayable within one
year, bears interest at HIBOR plus 2% (2012: n/a) per
annum and is secured by a pledge deposit of approximately
HK$12,500,000.

25. DEMEFRRITEE

RZE—=F=F=+—H  AEEHRHFET
B8 7645 49/4511,400,0008 T ( ZF——4F ¢
) o BN —FRNEENTFIREBBITRER
BI2ENE(ZE—=F : THEA)ZBTEE
B 4877 5049 412,500,00078 TTHEHERR ©
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26. Share Capital 26. B
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Authorised: VERE ¢
2,500,000,000 (2012: 2,500,000,000) 2,500,000,000/% &% E1E0.10
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each Bz EBR(ZE——4F
2,500,000,0004% ) 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BBEITRER
756,355,000 (2012: 756,355,000) 756,355,0000% &A% E1E0. 1078
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each T ERR(ZE——4F
756,355,0000% ) 75,635 75,635
A summary of the Company’s issued share capital as at the RIFEARA AR B EITRABELT ¢
end of reporting period is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
inissue capital account
[5):6) BR1T g Total
REGEE RA& HER Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, RZF——5MA—-F -
1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 “T-——FZA=+-H:
ZE-CHENA-BR
—“E-=%#=Zf=+-H 756,355,000 75,635 372,468 448,103
Share options BRAE

Details of the Company's share option schemes are

included in note 27 to the financial statements.

AT 2 IR RIS BN S RS R M7 -
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27. Share Option Schemes

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The
Company's original share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders on 7 March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”),
and was terminated and replaced by a share option
scheme approved by the shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was terminated and
replaced by a new share option scheme approved by the
shareholders on 5 August 2011 (the “New Scheme”). The
options granted under the 2000 Scheme, which were not
exercised or terminated or expired previously, became
expired on 21 August 2011.

A summary of the share option schemes is set out below:

(@) 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme became effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 23 April 2002. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme include all Directors
and employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
consultants who provided services to the Group,
shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and
joint venture partners. Under the 2002 Scheme, the
Directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any
eligible participants options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company. The exercise period of the
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends in
any event not later than 10 years from the respective
date when the share options are granted, subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof. The 2002
Scheme was terminated and replaced by the New
Scheme with effect from 5 August 2011. The options
granted under the 2002 Scheme remain exercisable
within their respective exercise periods.

(b) New Scheme
At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 5 August 2011 (the “2011 AGM"), an ordinary
resolution was passed by the shareholders to
approve and adopt the New Scheme in place of the
2002 Scheme.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27.

PR ERT 8

AREIRA BAARKAY N 2 BREE - 5
ESB M RBHARE KNG LEHERZ A
BRR2HE - RRN_FTTF-_ALAEZ
ZLVATﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁiﬂ((fz\gzi?riﬂj)aﬁ?
IEREBRRR T2 _FHANBMAEZ —RE
B8 T2 _F8 IR - — 2T _F
FEIERLEREERN —_2——F \ARA#E
Z IR RERT &I ([FEt 8] DI » RIE—F
TREAH BB ERNBERTESLLEIE R
BRECR _F——F N \A-+—BEm -

BRE S 2 BIEESIIMT

(@) —EB=FHH
TR FHEBC 7?_¢EH t=
BRBES  BH+F - —FETE

Zé%ﬁ%%éﬁi%@%$%lﬁﬁﬁi$&ﬁ
B HEn  BF  RAKEREHERBZ
B AEENBARZERREAERE
BH - -RE_ZFTT_F58 E=72
BERHRAERERNAER2RERDBR
& ARBARR Z ERA - FTIXEARE
ZITEMRBEFET - YRNETHEBEH
®&FE - REEAER T REANR LS
Pt 2 %1008 B R T FEWm - AR
BRI IE ZARFARR - — T T -5t
ER-Z——F \ARBKIERAHE
HXTJ: RE-_ZFT_FHEREZBRE
REZBITERRDAITE

(b) #ratEl
EARRR-_ZE——F \ARBESETZK
RBFRE([—T——FHRRBFAE])
b BRBE-HETERER  HAERRK
MFETEIABK T T 5518 -
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27. BEBRHERTEI®)
SR IC )

27. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(b) New Scheme (continued) (b)

The New Scheme became effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 10 August 2011. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include all Directors
and employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
consultants who provided services to the Group,
shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and
joint venture partners. Under the New Scheme, the
Directors may, at their sole discretion, grant to any
eligible participants options to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company at the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company on GEM as stated
in the Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date
of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company on GEM as stated in the
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company'’s
share. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option. The exercise period of the
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends in
any event not later than 10 years from the respective
date when the share options are granted, subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.

The total number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the New Scheme is an amount equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of the 2011 AGM.

The maximum number of shares to be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
relevant class of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time.

Mer8lE —T——F AT HFEER
RETF - FFEZAERSEERER
SEMEEERES - HER TF B
AEBRERG 2ER - AEEHBE QR
ZBREALEDERNY - REHHE &
EN2RBBERAERENSERSEER
B AHE - AR EHR T B HIRE R Pr
FHMER _LMAIIERIFRR 2 AR R RN
WE : (ERENRLARAAEARS
ARt AT E A MER LMAIIARRARND
BIFRMR 2 FHUWTE KA RO E
BEZERAZRERE)BBEARAZE
B - BRARHBEREZOZHRBELD
BHEIEA -+ — AR - R L ERER
AXNRBAREBEIET - IROBEREL
THRBRAERETE  INETHEBHEZ
FAsE - RAEEMIER TREENR L ER
B2 &M AR T FEm - EAXE
AR b 2 IRSTPR AR

RITERIZFET B R th 2 P& BB A i
B R BT A - HEBARER
BE_T——FRRBFASRTEMZ
ARBEEITHAD 210% °

RITERIZF 8 R AR B 2 T H
Pt st BIPT IR H RADARITR Z P A 15 R &
T8 2 B R & TRCE R BTN &
SHE  ARTHEBTREZRTZAR
AR RIA D 230%
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b) New Scheme (continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
The New Scheme does not provide for any minimum
period for holding of options or any performance
target before exercise of options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. BERHERTEI®)

(b) Hst&(@)
PMER+ {8 B #IfE Al T ERMEA 2 8B
BHEFTS 2 RN BB - EAREARRBRR
ERHERT - DSEARARQ BN EMERE
BETRONDZ1% BT ITERRFBEIL
FRTEFZBREMBRARRRRAZ
0.1% k% # B 815,000,000/ 7T - MR
RN RIBRALAE » Frat 8 EARE
FrA B 2 B IR RATERB AR 2
KEBR -

BRREY T TRHAE ABBBEHNERAS
BERZHER -

FA - RE-ST_FFFEI LB Z HARTTRE

2002 Scheme and New Scheme during the year: BERGRELD T
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
I BhRE TS R
THE £ 1 E #E
HKS$ per share ‘000  HKS per share '000
Br(ER) TR BL(ER) TR
At beginning of year P 0.41 30,290 0.43 33,560
Granted during the year FRKH 0.16 *2,900 — —
Lapsed during the year FRXM 0.53 (1,400) 0.59 (3,270)
At 31 March R=A=1+—H 0.38 31,790 0.41 30,290
* Total consideration of HK$15 was received for the share options & BB =F=A-_t+tHERLZEREZ

granted on 27 March 2013 that enable the grantees to subscribe
for up to 2,900,000 shares of the Company under the New
Scheme.

BRESET  RARAENFE TIRERS
2,900,0008% A A RIEA7
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BERREREl )
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REEHR - BB _FirE2 RFHtEI2H
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and the New RITEERBAHE 2 A TE B R ATHEER T ¢
Scheme as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2013
—E-=F
Number of options Exercise price*
‘000 HKS$ per share
BREZE 1TEE Exercise period
Tz BrL(ER) 1THERARR
300 0.100 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—EENF=A=+XRAZE
—E-mE=A=-t+EHH
700 0.170 10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EEXFERATHE
—E-XRFRANA
9,200 0.410 3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—ZEEN\FWA=HZE
—E2-\FWA=H
2,000 0.100 24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015

—EERFEAAZTHIARE

—Z-HFXA=1+=H

1,000 0.380 29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EEREANAZTAAZE

—E—-XREXA=ZtNH

5,000 0.396 1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—BBN\F+A—BE

—Z—tH+tHAAH

200 0.417 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EEBN\FEXA=HZE

—ZE-N\FXAZH

5,840 0.660 9 February 2010 to 8 February 2020
—E-ZF”-ANBE

—E-FEF-ANH

4,650 0.270 23 November 2010 to 22 November 2020
—E2-ZF+—-A=-t+=HZE

—E-EF+—A=+=H

2,900 0.162 27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023
—E-=F=A=-t+tHZE

—EB-=F=H=+H

31,790




Number of options
‘000

AR
TR

Exercise price*
HK$ per share
1TEE* Exercise period
BT (ER) TR EARR

250

0.260 22 May 2002 to 21 May 2012
TEE-FRAA+ZAHE
—E——FRA=-+—H

26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
ZEENF =A==+ HBE
—Z—pmNF=A=-+HA

10 May 2006 to 9 May 2016
—EERFRA+TH=ZE
—E-XRFHRANA

3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EEN\FOMA=HE
—E-N\FWMHA=H

24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
—EFRENAZFTEAE
—E-RFNAZ+=H

29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EERERNAZTABRE
—E-REXNAZTANHR

1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EEN\F+A—HE
—E—+F+HAER

3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
ZEENFAA=-HE
—E-N\FRAZH

9 February 2010 to 8 February 2020
—ET-TFE-ANHZE
—ETF - ANA

11 March 2010 to 10 March 2020
—E-EF=-A+—AHZE
—E-TF=A+H

23 November 2010 to 22 November 2020
—E-FF+—A=+=H=ZE
—E-TF+—A=+=AH
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BERREREl )

The fair value of share options granted for the year ended
31 March 2013 was approximately HK$325,000 (2012:
n/a). Including the share options granted in prior and
current years, a total equity settled share option expense
of approximately HK$380,000 (2012: HK$843,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2013.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant, with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using a binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

RBE-Z—=F=A=+—HIEEELE
PeHE 2 N FABIEX A325,0008 T (- B——4F :
THEA) o ;TR AEERBEFERH 2 BIRE
% BE-_T-—=F=BA=t+—RHIFEZEAE
ZHEWNRRANERZ AEREE o BRERY S
H#7/5380,000/87T( —Z— —4F :843,000/87T) °

FARDAESEE 2 BREZ A FEEZE
B EXRAEBRMGEMTEFGEERRAETL
REERI —AX R EERARNK L B #ET
et - W F R FBIE 2 BB R S AR -
TRIEZEATRBAER

Share options

granted on
27 March
2013

R=-E—=
=A=++H
B2 AR
Dividend yield (%) A% B2 (%) 0.0%
Expected volatility (%) TEHAR 1R (% 103.99%
Historical volatility (%) JE 55 5 @ (%) 103.99%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ 2 1) =R (%) 1.22%

Weighted average share price IEFHRECET(ER))

(HKS per share) 0.38

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other
than employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption
that the fair values of the services received can be estimated
reliably as in the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of
the services cannot be reliably measured. Accordingly, the
Group measured the services received from these parties,
with reference to the fair values of the share options
granted using the binomial model, at the date these parties
rendered related services to the Group.

TE AR U [ R R AR SRR R AT RN AR R B S - 1
N—TE B EFRAERABFT

SHEB AN BRAT 2 AR EE RIARGD HE
ReNFME  ARESFRR/RBZ A HEEL
REER] SEMATE - AEE D HERMERE 2 A
BEREA ST 2 BR - At - NEERER
HTRAEEER‘EEEREER - 2REMI 1A
A HREERAGHZERLBRIEZ A FE
B AAERZEREIRE 2R
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27.

28.

Share Option Schemes (continued)

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
aggregated outstanding share options that enable the
grantees to subscribe for up to 31,790,000 shares of the
Company under the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 31,790,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$3,179,000 and
share premium of HK$8,965,100.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had aggregated outstanding share options that
enable the grantees to subscribe for up to 28,890,000
shares under the 2002 Scheme and 2,850,000 shares under
the New Scheme, the underlying shares in respect of which
represented approximately 3.8% and 0.4%, respectively, of
the Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
to the statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to
use.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FERRRERT S ®)

SAERATEEREES AR L BRE 2 Kbk

RBERR  E_TT_FABIEFET - K
RNE|Z MARITEBREREEARATRERS
31,790,000 A 2 &) %17 o IRIEAN A B3R K 2 B
ALERE @ 2EIEZZFHRTEERERER
££1731,790,00008 " A RIFESNE BT « BN A
3,179,000/ 7T & A& 17 4 (88,965,100 7T, ©

REMBHRIEHLERD  RE_FT_F
A8 RFETE - ARz W ARITEBIRERRE
7R A R 3B 0B 0 Bl 235 % 28,890,000 8% A 17
2,850,000 B fn + E A% Rz HHER D B A 2
AIRE BE#RITIRMD 2 54 /33.8%50.4% -

A

(@) #%EME
AEENRFERBEFE 2 HESER
HEBBERNGAESEDRET -

RIEF BEARBEDI RARD - AEERPE
Az MBAR B aMEBREAE
FEED  BEZTBRZARLERS -
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28. Reserves (continued)

REMBZEERBRAT

——=55H

28. & u®)

(b) Company (b) &2 7]
Share Share
premium option  Accumulated
account reserve losses
rani BRE 23t Total
HER i B8 st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TR TAT AL
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 372,468 7952 (436,721) (56,301)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERYLE
expense for the year — — (3,467) (3,467)
Equity-settled share option INEREE 2 Bl Rs
arrangements — 843 — 843
Transfer of share option reserve BRER RIS ERERE
on the forfeited share options E1 — (1,038) 1,038 —
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R-E——&=A=+—-H}
—E-——FA—H 372,468 7,757 (439,150) (58,925)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERY G
expense for the year — — 241 241)
Equity-settied share option IR E BT
arrangements — 380 — 380
Transfer of share option reserve Bl s aia
on the forfeited share options G — (344) 344 —
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=1—H 372,468 7,793 (441,217) (60,956)
()  Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the iy REFAEESRAE(ZZEZE—FE
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of FIA)  ARRZ B H BRI HS
the Company is distributable to its shareholders TR - ERBEERENREE
provided that immediately following the date Bi& - NARIEREEER A B %168
on which the dividend is proposed to be T2 BB 2 E7 o
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
@iy  As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, in the opinion iy RZE— =K —Z—F=H

of the Directors, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

=t+—B ZE=FRR/AAFLERE
Al IR T RBOR
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28. ReServes (continued) 28. f#fE)
(b) Company (continued) (b) AEQF(HE)
@iy The share option reserve comprises the fair (i) MBREREBEFBCEDERRITERE
value of share options granted which are yet Itz ATEE - FFIEERIBHRE
to be exercised, as further explained in the W2 ABBEUARO B TRR S 2
accounting policy for share-based payment SR - AN A ABRERETT
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial FRERERMDEEER  MSensg
statements. The amount will be transferred to 2 FE AR i o Sl 18 I R B 2 R 5t
the share premium account when the related 518 ©
options are exercised, and will be transferred to
accumulated losses should the related options
expire or be forfeited.
(c) The Board does not recommend the payment of any (c) EEeTEEREE_ZT—==A8
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: nil). =+ —HLEFEEREEEHBRE(ZE—=
F |
29. Commitments 29. HAEYE
(a) Operating lease arrangements (a) KEHERH
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AREBRBELEHETHBEEEETHA
motor vehicles under operating lease arrangements. EMERAE o KENEERYEHE
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging HAE—ZE=F1%-
from one to three years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIFEHR - AEERET A HEEL M
total future minimum lease payments under non- EARU TR 2 RRFEBERNK
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: WRELOT ¢
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings: THIREF
Within one year —FR 1,987 2,380
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF
(PEEEMT) 294 4
2,281 2,384
Motor vehicles: A
Within one year —FR 15 59

2,296 2,443
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29.

30.

31.

commitments (continued)

(@) Operating lease arrangements (continued)
The Company has no operating lease arrangement at
the end of the reporting period (2012: nil).

FEMRERARAT
e

29.

HIEE)

(a) REHEZHE)
AARRBERRL ET AL EHELHE
(ZZ—=F |-

(b) cCapital commitments (b) BEAREE
The Group and the Company has no significant capital AREBE KRR RHRE AR ET(AEKR
commitment at the end of the reporting period (2012: BREWE(ZE——F )
nil).
Related Party Transactions 30. FEEALRS
Details of compensation of key management personnel of BENAEETFEESIE A B 2RISR
the Group are included in note 8 to the financial statements MR MTEES » 2 FE MBI K B AR TR A
which do not constitute connected transactions or 2B G ERERS o
continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing
Rules.
Financial Instruments by Category 31. EREDzEm T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEER - SESRITAEZEREEAWNT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2013
—E-=F
Group
AEH
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables investments
Financial assets BEXR AHEE Total
TREE W IR SRIRE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE — 831 831
Trade receivables JEUL AR FX 13,431 = 13,431
Financial assets included in FHAGT & R E MR
deposits and other receivables R SREE 9,552 — 9,552
Due from Directors BN E E 2 FIE 655 — 655
Pledged deposits [REEETiVER 12,740 — 12,740
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RBESEED 39,050 — 39,050
75,428 831 76,259
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31. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3. wERE S v I AEw@m)

2013
—E—=F
Group
TEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
Financial liabilities ARSI R 2
=R tRAas
HK$'000
FHET
Trade payables JERTHRER 12,634
Financial liabilities included in T AEA BN SRIAREETRIA 2
other payables and accruals TREE 6,296
Interest-bearing bank borrowing it ERITEE 11,400
30,330
2012
T -—F
Group
AEHE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables investments
Financial assets B A E Total
TREE FEUSRIA DEEE HaEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FHET
Available-for-sale investments AHNERE — 826 826
Trade receivables FEURBR IR 17,176 — 17,176
Financial assets included in T AR & R EAFEL
deposits and other receivables DB SREE 3,540 — 3,540
Pledged deposits [REERVER 247 — 247
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 67,135 — 67,135
88,098 826 88,924




Group

REE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

Financial liabilities AR 2
EEBE EEBE
HK$'000

FAT

Trade payables FERTERX 3,407
Financial liabilities included in FTARMENRIERENRBEZEREE

other payables and accruals 10,743
Due to Directors ENESZHIE 741

14,891

Company
/N

2013 2012

—E—=F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
Financial assets EXER Bk
ERMEE W RIE FEWRIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

Financial assets included in investments ~ EtARHB AR ZIHE
in subsidiaries SREE

Financial assets included in AR & REMFEL
deposits and other receivables HEZCRMEE

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY
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31. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 31, 1ZMERIZ D 2 &/ T E@)

company
AT
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
R birgc s
Financial liabilities RAFERZ R ZRBBR 2
SHMAE cHMEE CRMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Financial liabilities included in other ST A E A FE A 5B K ERT FUE 2
payables and accruals SHBE 1,292 2,085
Financial liabilities included in investments st ARMB AT ZIBE Y
in subsidiaries TRIBE 1,814 1,799
3,106 3,884
32. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy 32. RFEBERRAFEESRERS
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets BRIESHINA - BRIAEE 2 2pEE(BFER
(including cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, e RBSEEY  BEBER  BURERR 572
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, due FEMBEWKGIE  BREEZZFB)RECHEE
from Directors) and financial liabilities (including trade (BIEETERR - MBI RIERERTFIA « &
payable, other payables and accruals, interest bearing bank BRITEFBERERBARIE  MZEILAZ
borrowing) approximate their fair values due to the short IREEEEANFEERE -

term maturities of these instruments, unless otherwise
Stated.
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32.

33.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1.  fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2:

fair values measured based on valuation
technigues for which any of the inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Level 3:

The Company did not have any financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013 and
2012.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2012: nil) and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2012: nil).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
interest-bearing bank borrowing, trade payables, and other
payables. The Company’s major financial instruments
include amounts due from subsidiaries, other deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and accruals.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

REMBERERAR

—T-ZFFH
2. RFEBEERAFEESREE®

33.

AFEESREM
AREEAAT SRR REERABEMIAY
AFEE:

F—E: REREEXRRENERNSZRE
CREHE)FHEZ QA FEE -

RGERIGFEZAFEE - hZF
MERDZAEEABHE ARAT
EBEAAREAYE YA HEEKKFE

Bz

RGERIGFEZAFEE - MZF
RERDLZEMNEAD ARIFEE
BESEAYE  BWKBEAIBED
BEBESHTABRGAE -

RZBE—=FR-_FT——F=A=+—H8 A
AT EEMIRATEEFECEREENRARE -

FR - FoEEE_[EBHIREEBATER
ZETE(ZE—ZF ) INSAEBARELE
—E(ZE——F:E\E)o

BREREIE B ZE MR

AEBEZTIESRTAREREERR - Kt
R RELBEEFEY  sTRRITENR - BAK
REEMENTIE - AARZTESMT AR
R A RZIR ~ Btk - RekReFE
W) AN SRR RERT R

AEBeRMTAELEZ TERR AT ERR -
SNERER - EERREGBIECRR cEE2FE
BT E B A SRR 2 BER - AEERME
MG o
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate bank borrowing (see note 25
for details of bank borrowing). The Group's income and
operating cash flows are independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits (see note 22
for details of pledged bank deposits).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2012: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss after tax for the year ended 31
March 2013 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$48,000 (2012: nil); and the Group’s equity as at 31
March 2013 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$48,000 (2012: nil). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate of
short term bank borrowings.

The Company

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is minimal
as Company does not have any significant short/long term
interest bearing financial liabilities.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

3. IR E IR B E MBCR ®)

F 2= = b

rEmE
REBBREFZBHFERRTEE(FRRTEEZ
FIEBRMES)RERSREFNERAR - K&
B BMARCERSRETTMSHRES 2 &
@,

AEETHREEE B EWRTER(EHCER
RITHFRZFBERRME2) AL TFEENX
R o

R BB LS FIRE R - AEEES
R R R G E B R E AR
m -

BB T

AT BRE DT TIRIBR & MEHRIFITET A
ZHIRBERMETE © AT IHREN & HwE AR
AETEZEMT AN FARETEMRER - 18
RFEES0EEE (=T ——F : S0fAEE)TIM
ETRERABEABHRENERARESAER - I
REREEEBHNXSIE A BT -

MAIRIR S, TR ES0EES (= ——4F : 50&
AEM) BB EMEERIFITE  AEEEHEC
T —=F=A=+—HIFENGRTEEIER B
0,8 #948,0008 T (—F——4F  E)A K
AREBZEFN-_E—=F=A=+—"HBA8Em
L/ HEINHIA8,000/8 T (—F——4F : ££) o iy
FEFRARANEBZEF G IR TEE R F| =
[RBRR ©

EAYT
BN AR R EES ERERES, KA ES
BAE - WARBNONXEBREM -
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group

The Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars. As the foreign currency risks generated from the
sales and cost of sales can be set off with each other, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was
not material. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions and other financial assets
and liabilities created in the ordinary course of business.
The majorities of the Group's operating assets are located
in Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss after tax and the Group's
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

FEMRERARAT
e

3. MisRERER B2 &BER )

SN LB

e 5

AEEEERS  EREERABREIEUARE
KT RFTEEN - ARNHE RHERARESL
ZANERBR P EARIKSE - Et - SNERBREARE
BATBRZZEEM - AREYEUITESRT
B EBERGERT IINERZ REMERE
ERBERMNEZRE - AEEAMOKLEE
fIPA R B A - AN REEEHE o

TRINFEMBRMAZERZERTEZIEN
T AEEZBRREBEBEARE 2 BN RE
HIRUARBEXRARLRAEESH 2 GURE
(HREBEERBEBZAFEERZT)) -

and liabilities).
2013
—E-=F
Group
TEE
Decrease/ Increase/
Increase/  (increase) in  (decrease) in
(decrease) in the Group's the Group’s
RMB rate loss after tax equity*
ARMEER AEEZ rEEZ
=t MBI B AR R,
() WA () * Om ) *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
If Hong Kong dollar weakens WETAAREEZE
against RMB 5% 1 1
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens B T8 AR EFE
against RMB (5%) (1) (1)
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

IERERE IR B E MBUR (#)

Foreign currency risk (continued) NEE B (4])
The Group (continued) AEE ()
2012
—E——F
Group
REE
Decrease/ Increase/
Increase/ (increase) in (decrease) in
(decrease) in the Group'’s the Group's
RMB rate loss after tax equity*
AREEEZE rEEZ REEZ
it P& B8 R,
(F:3) R, () OB )*
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT
If Hong Kong dollar weakens B TR ARBRE
against RMB 5% 1 1
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens #4870 5 A RETHE
against RMB (5%) (1) (1)
* Including accumulated losses e BIEEEE

The Company
The Company has no exposure to significant risk resulting
from change in foreign currency rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
available-for-sale financial investments, financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables and amounts
due from Directors, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments.

EANAYT)
AR B EARINEE RSB MAREARSE

&R
AEEERNEREBRRIZEFETRS - R
BASERE  HAABEUNEERRETRSZ
BEFPHAKBEEZERF ° I AEBTH
BESREMIRGS - MAKE ZZRERL T
EX-

rEFBEMEREE(BRASMREEEY
EEMER  IHEESRRE AT RE
ERKFRBZ EMEEMREBRES ZFKIA) 2E
ERBEGTEOMES - ERESNZETA
ZBREE



Notes to the Financial Statements
BRI B 5

31March2013 =Z—=F=A=+—H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group'’s objective is to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

The Group finances its operations by revenue generated
from its operations and other internal resources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company's
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

REMRRARAT
—T-=44R

33.

PR E IR B E MBOR (#)

FERER @)
BRASERRKETMELEZ EERR ZE—
FEICEMRYBFRRMEI9WE -

RBETERIERERTESARNPAERIH
BRMBAE AR - AEE 2 BIREFRTRE
ZHEHR - BERRBRRERRDESL X
YHRAEEZERTE  BRAKEABRARS
NENERBHESHR -

REBNEZ LGS R EMABERSELEER
HES -

ok

RBEHR - AEERARTRBEEORTEN
FETEZERABZRMBERMT

follows:
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
On demand On demand
or less than or less than
12 months 12 months
BRERE, BEK,
PR+=ER PRI+ =EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables JERTHRR 12,634 3,407
Financial liabilities included in S AF MR FRIE R EET FRIE 2
other payables and accruals TEAE 6,296 10,743
Due to Directors JENE SR 2 5B = 741
Interest-bearing bank borrowing A BERITEE 11,400 —

30,330 14,891
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33, BAF&EREIE B 1E REE (&)

Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) MENE & B (E)
Company
¥ NN
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
On demand On demand
or less than or less than
12 months 12 months
RERR RESRKDK
LPRT=EA PR TZEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FiBT
Financial liabilities included in T AE AR FE R ZIB &
other payables and accruals Bt REzZSHEaE 1,292 2,085
Capital management BEXREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management REEEAREE 2 X Z B R ARRNEBERE

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to

EREBRER-

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No

B SORIZL BB -

changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2013

LENBRRIT 2 EALE - ATHHEB RS

REEEREEARRBIAMRIBLEAN N 2 B8
KEMBEERBRSEMEL TR - AEEA LA
BRFHBHRRIKE RS  ARRREEAR
SEITHASARIFF AR EANRIE - AREBA
BTEAIRERRE - HE_T—=FR_-F
——H=-A=1+—HIFE BEXAEEZBE

and 2012.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEERAEARARL RERAENER - &
is total bank borrowings divided by total equity (including NEE B RZRITEELEREREB (BRI
capital and reserves). The gearing ratios as at the end of BARRFEE)GTE - RREARZEREGFL
the reporting periods were as follows: KT :
Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest-bearing bank borrowing HEIRITIEE 11,400 —
Total equity M BRE 49,475 77,765
Gearing ratio EAREEFL K 23% N/A
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34. Acquisition of a Subsidiary 34. WESHIB A A

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in bR SEUFEHR
ABRAR] (Beijing Yi Ou You Technology Company Limited,
for identification purpose only) at a total consideration of
RMB300,000 (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount
of goodwill arising as a result of the Acquisition was
HK$188,000. It =SB EHR AR AR is engaged in design
and distribution of mobile games.

The Directors considered the Acquisition provided the
Group with a business diversification opportunity into new
mobile phone related business activities in the PRC and its
future potential.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired in the
Acquisition and the goodwill arising were as follows:

BE- T —F=A=+—HLFE ~EEN
#ARME A RBE300,0007T 7E A BB 4L 2= 5 BB R
RARARI00% B A ([ZUWEE D) » &K
BIAWIBENR - 2B BFAEECHESRR
188,000/8 7T ° L R BB R AR A RN ER
stRBETR B

EXZR0 ZWBEAAEERHRT —BEXKZT
L E  EARENTBBEREBEL LD

RzBBMESZEERABZ A FEEMRE
EZREENT

Group

REE

Fair value

ATEE

HK$'000

FHET

Cash and bank balances BE RIRTTEHS 21
Trade and other receivables JRE LS AR 3 % B At B U SR TR 257
Trade and other payables JE S AR N B FE S SR IE (38)
Accruals JERTFRIE (98)
Net assets BEFE 142
HK$'000

FET

Net assets acquired BB EEFE 142
Goodwill [EES 188
Total purchase consideration BB E 330
Satisfied by deposit paid AEET & BT 330
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34. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (continued) 34. WHEMB AR @)
Net cash inflow arising on the Acquisition: ZUWBEE 2 REIMAHE -
HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid in cash and cash equivalents LRERREEEYS T2 RE —
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired W PTE 2 IR MR EEMER 21
21

£51

36.

37.

Note: There was no material difference between the fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities and the corresponding
acquiree’s carrying amount.

(i) Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$11,800 were
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2012.

(i) AR ZBFERIZAR AT brought loss of approximately
HK$41,000 to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

(iii) Had the Acquisition been taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 March 2012 would have been approximately HK$18,070,000
and the Group’s turnover would have been approximately
HK$73,029,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group and the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2013 (2012: nil)

Event after the Reporting Period

No Significant events took place subsequent to 31 March
2013 (2012: nil).

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 18 June 2013.

35.

36.

37.

MiaE : ATRRAER A B AT EEERRKKIEE 2R
EEZFBUEEAZR -

(i) #911,800/8 T Z BB AT St ABZE—F ——
FZRA=t-RAULFEZHAZAKSERNA

iy BE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE {LESEH;
BEERA R AARNE BT RL41,0008 7T 2 B8 -

(i) fHRUBREE—Z——F=-A=+—HIFEZ
FEYHET > BIAEERBE T ——F=A=+—
HIEFE 2 EEREX 518,070,000/ T kAL E
2 B EA R ) 573,029,000/ 7T °

SAE

RZZBE—=F=A=1+—H ' AEBEKEKARFIL
EBAMEARABGE (T ——F: &) -

MG HAR =18
R-E—=F=A=+—HRBIWERLEEMEKN
FH(ZE—ZF  F) o

SRR 2 2

MEHBERN _T—=F A+ \AEESESHE
KR M -
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